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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  Welcome to the Civil Service Committee

          4  hearing.  My name is Joe Addabbo.  I have the

          5  privilege of chairing this Committee.  This is our

          6  first hearing of today.  We will have a second

          7  hearing roughly at 1 o'clock, but this first hearing

          8  is regarding Intro. 499-A, a bill that would

          9  automatically give health care insurance coverage to

         10  surviving spouses or domestic partners and children

         11  of deceased uniformed, Correction and Sanitation

         12  employees.

         13                 At this point, I want to commend all

         14  those who worked on 499-A, including the Mayor's

         15  Administration, the Council staff, including our

         16  legal counsel, Rob Newman.  Again, thank you to all

         17  who worked on Intro. 499-A for the sake of our City

         18  workers and their families.

         19                 At this point, let me again thank my

         20  staff, to my left here, Elisa Chea, Legal Counsel,

         21  to the right, Harold Gates, Legal Counsel, Joan

         22  Povolny, our Policy Analyst, Jeff Gottlieb, my

         23  Legislative Aide, and of course the Sergeant-at-Arms

         24  here for setting the room up and making sure we're

         25  orderly.
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          2                 Again, welcome all.  We're going to

          3  call our first panel, and Commissioner James Hanley.

          4                 Commissioner Hanley, good to see you

          5  again, and thank you for your time here today.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Good morning.

          7  Good to see you again.  My name is James F. Hanley.

          8  I'm the Commissioner of Labor Relations for the City

          9  of New York, and I'm here today to testify in

         10  support of Intro. 499- A.

         11                 This bill would amend subdivision (b)

         12  of section 12 126 of the Administrative Code of the

         13  City of New York, to automatically authorize the

         14  provision of health insurance benefits to the

         15  surviving family members of uniformed employees of

         16  the Department of Correction and the Department of

         17  Sanitation who have died while in active service as

         18  a result of an accident or injury sustained in the

         19  performance of their duties.

         20                 This bill was drafted as a result of

         21  three separate and tragic incidents resulting in the

         22  deaths of three employees of the Department of

         23  Sanitation, the most recent of which was Mr. Rafael

         24  Concepcion, who died in the line of duty on December

         25  9th, 2006 and left behind two minor children.  The
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          2  two other Sanitation employees were Mr. Allen

          3  Gormely and Mr. James Rubino, who both died as a

          4  result of heart attacks in the performance of their

          5  duties.

          6            This is a bill that we strongly urge you

          7  to adopt and we would ask you to do that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          9  much, Commissioner, and again, I appreciate your

         10  efforts as well on this Intro. 499- A.

         11                 In line of duty, defined by the

         12  pension board?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you work

         15  directly with the pension boards correct?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Prior to this,

         18  there was  --

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY:  There were

         20  bills that we had to do on a regular basis.  No

         21  relation, but the first one that we came and

         22  testified about six years ago was about Sanitation

         23  worker Hanley, and we've done independent and

         24  individual bills since then.  This would

         25  automatically take care of the issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So by giving

          3  automatic benefits obviously it expedites the

          4  process for the families.  Correct?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It's the right

          6  thing to do for the families, and does in fact

          7  expedite it, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I agree.  At

          9  this point, let me introduce some of my colleagues

         10  who are here today, Committee Member Melissa Mark-

         11  Viverito.  Council Member, thank you.  Council

         12  Member Alan Gerson, not a member of the Committee,

         13  but here as well, and I appreciate him being here.

         14  Any questions from my colleagues at this point?

         15  Commissioner Hanley, again thank you very much for

         16  your time and for your efforts with Intro. 499- A.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  Our

         19  next panel is Harry Nespoli, President of the

         20  Uniformed Sanitationmen's Association.  Gentlemen,

         21  thank you very much for being here.  Just please

         22  state your name for the record.

         23                 MR. BISHOP: Thank you.  Good

         24  afternoon.  My name is Robert Bishop.  I'm Counsel

         25  for the Uniformed Sanitationmen's Association, and

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  to my right is the President of the Association,

          3  Harry Nespoli.

          4                 MR. NESPOLI: How are you?  First of

          5  all, I'd like to thank the Mayor, and I would also

          6  like to thank the Committee and all of the City

          7  Council.  I'll be very brief on this because one, it

          8  starts when I lose a member and as quick as I can

          9  turn around and reach the family is from one day to

         10  a day and a half.  When I reach them basically I get

         11  hit with all the questions.  What is this?  What is

         12  that?  What is that?  When it comes to health, the

         13  answer is I don't know because I really don't know

         14  at that time where that bill, and I'm never going to

         15  mislead anybody to say that you have your health

         16  coverage for your family and for everybody and your

         17  children.  This bill helps me to say yes.  The yes

         18  means it entitles them to health benefits for the

         19  widow and for their children.  It's very important

         20  because the people are just starting to get over the

         21  shock of a family member going to work and not

         22  returning, and when I see them in that state and

         23  tell them I don't know or maybe, it's tough on me

         24  and it has to be just as tough on them.  So I really

         25  urge the Council and the City and everybody else to
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          2  make this a permanent bill so that I can go there,

          3  and when I'm there after a day or two trying to

          4  console the member's family that I could actually

          5  say yes, the benefits are there.  That's it.

          6                 MR. BISHOP: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Just a quick

          8  question.  Your members, they are obviously put in

          9  situations where there is a risk or a danger.

         10  Correct?

         11                 MR. NESPOLI: Every day.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And what kind of

         13  circumstances might that be?

         14                 MR. NESPOLI: Well I could tell you

         15  about the case on Mr. Hanley that passed away.

         16  Apparently, somebody put acid into a bottle and into

         17  the garbage pail.  As he was picking the pail up and

         18  putting the garbage into the truck, it exploded.  It

         19  came out and caught him in the face and actually

         20  went down his mouth.  I can't imagine the amount of

         21  pain that Mr. Hanley went through and it just turned

         22  around and killed him in a minute.  His partner was

         23  devastated over that because he really couldn't help

         24  him at the time.

         25                 There has been about eight of my
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          2  members in the past ten years that lost their life

          3  while performing their duty.  There was another

          4  young gentlemen coming back from Jersey which turned

          5  around and hit the back of a truck and the steel

          6  girder went right through his chest.  There was

          7  another member that was loading the truck at night

          8  time, and it was a hit- and- run which cost him his

          9  life.  So when you talk about my members, I talk

         10  about them as being frontliners.  They're out there

         11  every single day in the City of New York performing

         12  a duty for the citizens and trying to do the best

         13  they possibly can.  They're not waiting to get

         14  called. They're not waiting to out.  They're in the

         15  street, and probably everybody here possibly already

         16  got caught behind a Sanitation truck and was yelling

         17  and screaming.  It's a couple of times I went like

         18  this, but the position I had, I had to keep my mouth

         19  shut.

         20                 Now the increase of deaths since I

         21  became President four years ago, believe it or not,

         22  has gone up, and what I want to do here is try to

         23  get this a permanent bill like some of the forces

         24  have because they're out there like I said.  That's

         25  the frontline out there.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: All right.

          3  Again, I want to thank you very much, both of you,

          4  for being here, and let me express my gratitude for

          5  your membership, or to your membership, for the work

          6  that they do day in and day out throughout our City

          7  regardless of the weather.  Again, they are

          8  responsible for many, many issues and many

          9  situations throughout the City so to your membership

         10  who make up our Department of Sanitation, thank you

         11  very much.  We appreciate it.  Thank you.

         12                 MR. NESPOLI: And thank you to you

         13  too.

         14                 MR. BISHOP: Thanks very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any other

         16  speakers on this bill? The next step for this bill

         17  will be a full vote by this Committee, hopefully

         18  before the next date of Council, then, of course,

         19  the vote by the full State of the Council and then

         20  ultimately a signature by the Mayor.  Again, I want

         21  to thank all those who had worked on this bill

         22  499-A.  Seeing no other witnesses, this part of the

         23  Civil Service Committee hearing is adjourned.  Thank

         24  you. The part of the Civil Service hearing regarding

         25  the 9/11 health issues should start around 15 or 20
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          2  minutes from now. Thank you.

          3                 (This portion of the hearing

          4  concluded at 12:53 p.m.)

          5                 (Resumed at 1:21 p.m.)

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good afternoon,

          7  everyone.  Welcome to today's hearing of the Civil

          8  Service and Labor Committee.  My name is Joe

          9  Addabbo. I have the privilege of chairing this

         10  Committee and I welcome you all here.

         11                 Today is the Committee's second

         12  hearing, but it's also the second hearing on this

         13  issue of the status of the access to medical care

         14  for uniformed municipal workers in the aftermath of

         15  the 9/11 attacks.  The first hearing was held on

         16  September 14th, 2006, and it focused on the medical

         17  treatment available to uniformed workers suffering

         18  from 9/11 related illnesses.  The second hearing

         19  will explore the health care issues that workers are

         20  still facing and review recommendations made by the

         21  Mayor's World Trade Center Health Panel.

         22                 At this point, I'd like to take a

         23  moment to thank all those individuals involved in

         24  any way to help this City get back on its feet in

         25  the aftermath of and during the 9/11 tragedy, and
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          2  although we will only be discussing issues regarding

          3  City workers and uniformed workers, we understand

          4  that there are approximately over 40,000 people who

          5  helped in that endeavor, and we are mindful that

          6  there are many others who participated in the rescue

          7  and recovery efforts in 9/11 and the thousands of

          8  workers who may be in the private industry,

          9  civilians and even those who might have lived

         10  outside of New York City.  We are thankful for all

         11  of their efforts as well.

         12                 It is well documented that thousands

         13  of people have suffered adverse physical and mental

         14  effects in the aftermath of the World Trade Center

         15  attacks, and I believe this is only the beginning.

         16  Dozens of programs offering a combination of

         17  screening, monitoring, therapy and medical treatment

         18  for individuals were developed in the months and

         19  years that followed 9/11.  During this hearing, we

         20  will discuss the status of these programs and who

         21  are being helped by them.

         22                 On September 14th, 2006, this

         23  Committee heard testimony from the Mayor's

         24  Administration, first responders and several labor

         25  leaders, and it was those labor leaders who brought
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          2  to our attention that some of the members are not

          3  being helped, and they are not getting their needed

          4  medical attention.  We will try to get an update on

          5  that situation as well today.

          6                 Also at that September 2006 hearing,

          7  this Committee joined others in the call for

          8  increased funding from the federal government to

          9  assist us in attending to the issues of the

         10  illnesses of 9/11.  I commend the Mayor for his

         11  testimony given on March 21st, before the U.S.

         12  Senate, for not only requesting federal funding, but

         13  for also urging the panel to reopen the September

         14  11th Victims Compensations Fund.  Acknowledgment and

         15  gratitude is also expressed to the Mayor's World

         16  Trade Center Health Panel and their report which

         17  recommendations we will discuss today.

         18                 Today the health related issues of

         19  9/11 is of great importance to this City and likely

         20  to become more significant for many in the future.

         21  All the more reason to periodically have these

         22  oversight hearings and work together for the sake of

         23  our City workers and their families.

         24                 And, again, I want to thank you all

         25  for being here today.  I'd like to thank the
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          2  Committee staff who helped put this together.  To my

          3  right is Harold Gates, our Legal Counsel.  To my

          4  left, Elisa Chae, Legal Counsel, our Policy Analyst,

          5  Joan Povolny, my Legislative Aid, Jeff Gottlieb, the

          6  Sergeant- at- Arms today. Thank you very much for

          7  making sure this room stays orderly, and I'd like to

          8  thank all those who may give testimony today and

          9  participate in the hearing.

         10                 I also would like to welcome some of

         11  our colleagues who are here with me today.  Starting

         12  to my right we have Council Member Jim Gennaro,

         13  Council Member Hiram Monserrate, Council Member

         14  Melissa Mark- Viverito, Council Member Mike Nelson,

         15  Council Member, far left only in seating of course,

         16  Council Member Mike McMahon and Council Member Alan

         17  Gerson.  I thank my colleagues for their

         18  participation today.  Council Member Alan Gerson

         19  said unfortunately he cannot stay with us, but he

         20  does have a brief statement.  So Council Member

         21  Gerson, please.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chair.  Unfortunately, I cannot remain.

         24  Although, of course, I will continue to work with

         25  you and the Committee on this important endeavor and
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          2  members of our District 1 team will remain

          3  throughout the hearing, but I just need just to take

          4  a brief moment on behalf of the District which most

          5  immediately and directly benefitted from the heroism

          6  of the uniformed and non- uniformed personnel whose

          7  health needs we are considering today as well as the

          8  many non uniformed personnel to thank all of the

          9  services and the compliment of heroes who came to

         10  our rescue.  I will never forget.  You can never say

         11  this too much.  So I will say it again though

         12  briefly. I will never forget witnessing these

         13  uniformed personnel marching towards the Ground Zero

         14  site as the flames were burning and the feeling of

         15  reassurance and the feeling of inspiration which my

         16  community and I as well as the rest of the City and

         17  nation received as a result.  Now it remains our

         18  turn as a City, as a nation, as a society to do

         19  right by these heroes, to assure that every person,

         20  uniformed as well as non- uniformed who assisted in

         21  this effort received full access to all resulting

         22  health needs and if there is any doubt we are on the

         23  side of over- inclusion and not under inclusion, and

         24  that is the very least we must do to pay recognition

         25  and debt to the heroism invinced (sic) during those
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          2  terrible moments.

          3                 I just want to acknowledge the great

          4  work of the Mayor's World Trade Center Health Panel,

          5  Cas Holloway and Linda Gibbs for their leadership

          6  and pledge that my district, my community and I, and

          7  our office will continue to work with you with all

          8  of the uniformed services, will all of the others

          9  involved in the rescue and recovery effort, and of

         10  course Mr. Chair with you. I thank you for your lead

         11  role in assuring that this issue remains at the

         12  forefront of the Council's agenda, and we'll work

         13  with your leadership.

         14                 I'm going to add one other note and

         15  one issue that sometimes is too overlooked which I

         16  want to reiterate that it be put on the table and

         17  that is as a compliment to providing health care

         18  services, we remember the need to provide basic

         19  medical research beyond the data collection and

         20  epidemiology.  There is promise if we now finance

         21  basic hard core scientific microscope research, we

         22  could find better treatment and possibly even cures

         23  if we better understand the interaction of human

         24  cells to what was released on 9/11.  So I hope in

         25  the upcoming budget this Council and this
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          2  Administration will work together to incorporate a

          3  Capital item that will allow for the expansion of

          4  laboratories as well as we work together at the

          5  City, State and Federal level to provide sufficient

          6  operating funds to assure universal health care

          7  coverage.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          9  much, Council Member Gerson.  Thanks for being here.

         10    Again, to our first witness panel, I appreciate

         11  your time and testimony.  If you'd please give your

         12  name for the record and your testimony, I'd

         13  appreciate it.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I'm Linda Gibbs,

         15  Deputy Mayor for Health and Human Services.

         16                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Cas Holloway.  I'm

         17  Chief of Staff to Deputy Mayor Ed Skyler, and I was

         18  one of the Executive Directors of the Panel.

         19                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: You have my

         20  written testimony, and with your permission, what

         21  I'll do is try to summarize it so that we can spend

         22  as much time in discussion.  So thank you, and I'm

         23  joined by Cas who is Deputy Mayor Ed Skyler's Chief

         24  of Staff. Ed was not able to make it today and

         25  recognized that his seat is more than filled by Cas
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          2  who was one of the Co- Directors of the Panel work

          3  together with Rima Cohen who is my Director of

          4  Health and Community Services, and Rima will join us

          5  for questions.  Ed does extend his apologies and

          6  with I, we thank you for the hearing today and for

          7  the work that this Committee has done in helping to

          8  continue the focus on this very important issue.

          9                 In putting together the Panel last

         10  summer, beginning of the fall, the Mayor asked us to

         11  look into what the City's response was in attending

         12  to the health concerns regarding those who were

         13  responders during 9/11.  The process that the Panel

         14  convened was we had a large group of individuals,

         15  many City agencies represented.  I believe about 14

         16  City agencies, and we met periodically throughout

         17  the fall.  The beginning of that process was a very

         18  thorough survey of the responses of all City

         19  agencies. So we sent out a survey to each agency.

         20  We asked them what they knew about their employees

         21  who responded and what activities they did in

         22  support of the health needs of those employees.  We

         23  also conducted 60 interviews with union

         24  representatives, area residents, medical experts,

         25  local businesses, really anyone that we could think

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  of who had an interest or a role.  We wanted to

          3  develop as comprehensive an understanding that we

          4  could of what was out there, what was done and what

          5  was perceived to be missing, where were the gaps

          6  that people identified in the service delivery

          7  system or in the knowledge or in the connection of

          8  an individual who might be suffering harm to a

          9  service in order to meet that harm.

         10                 We traveled to Washington and met

         11  with the other legislative leaders who have been

         12  very active in the battle of bringing attention and

         13  support to the medical needs, and we as a group

         14  discussed this.  We spent a lot of time getting to

         15  appreciate more what each other had done.

         16                 The result of all of those efforts is

         17  the most exhaustive, really the only examination in

         18  a complete nature of the health impacts of 9/11 to

         19  date laid out in the report that the Mayor released

         20  at the completion of the Panel's work.  The Mayor

         21  accepted all of the recommendations of the Panel

         22  coming from those participants among the Panel

         23  members as well as emanating from all of the

         24  outreach that we had done.

         25                 So let me give you some highlights of
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          2  the Panel's findings.  The dust cloud, debris, fires

          3  and the other destruction that was caused by the

          4  collapse of the Trade Center produced an

          5  environmental disaster unprecedented in the United

          6  States.  There is no similar circumstance that we

          7  could look to for history of experience.  Over the

          8  past five years since the incident, researchers and

          9  clinicians have reported in peer- reviewed studies

         10  and have learned from their own treatment

         11  experiences that thousands of people experienced

         12  physical and mental health conditions that were

         13  caused or exacerbated by exposure to this disaster.

         14  While many have recovered, others continue to face a

         15  range of ailments.  The most common are respiratory

         16  illnesses and mental health conditions, such as

         17  PTSD.  We do not yet know the full extent of these

         18  conditions, how long they will remain or how

         19  successfully they can be resolved with treatment.

         20                 We also do not yet know whether late-

         21  emerging or potentially fatal conditions such as

         22  cancer or pulmonary fibrosis will arise in the

         23  future.  But concern about these illnesses

         24  developing was raised time and again in discussions

         25  with responders and residents alike.  We know that
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          2  we must build the capacity to detect and respond to

          3  any conditions that may reveal themselves in the

          4  future.

          5                 Let me talk a little bit about the

          6  rescue and recovery workers.  This group, those who

          7  were in the immediate rescue and recovery and who

          8  were there in the first days after the event, are

          9  the most likely to experience ill health effects.

         10  For example, 2,000 of the Fire Departments 14,000

         11  first responders have sought treatment for

         12  respiratory conditions.  Among a sample of 9,400

         13  rescue and recovery workers treated at Mount Sinai,

         14  32 percent self- reported lower respiratory symptoms

         15  and 50 percent self- reported  --  Not lower meaning

         16  less than.  Lower meaning the lower half  --  and 50

         17  percent reported upper respiratory symptoms. There

         18  are rates obviously much higher than would be

         19  experienced in the general population.

         20                 Psychological effects were also

         21  pronounced.  Data collected indicated that the

         22  prevalence of PTSD among rescue and recovery

         23  workers, 12.4 percent.  That ranges 7.2 percent for

         24  police, 21.2 percent for unaffiliated volunteers.

         25  Very interesting here, individuals who are in the
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          2  business of emergency crisis response and are

          3  trained and experienced in responding to human

          4  disaster have lower levels.  The many volunteers who

          5  showed up to offer their services during this time

          6  have much higher levels of PTSD.  They were not as

          7  readied in their professional training and

          8  experience for dealing with the human effects of

          9  this disaster.

         10                 The data is here and it goes on

         11  really to reveal that we do know quite a bit.  The

         12  fact that we have these centers at Bellevue and

         13  Mount Sinai and at the Fire Department has given us

         14  a great deal of knowledge and there is a lot of good

         15  empirically- based factual information that we can

         16  rely on that show us the impacts in both physical

         17  and mental health terms.

         18                 Another important source of

         19  information is the World Trade Center Health

         20  Registry.  This is the largest public health

         21  surveillance effort of its kind.  It has been

         22  documenting the physical and mental health

         23  conditions of 70,000 residents, responders,

         24  commercial workers and others.  Within weeks of

         25  closing enrollment, the Registry data showed that
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          2  two- thirds of the adult enrollees self- reported

          3  new or worsened sinus or nasal problems. They also

          4  reported higher levels of psychological distress,

          5  and the importance, we're continuing to learn.  The

          6  second survey of the Registry is now being tabulated

          7  and we are continuing to learn about the ongoing

          8  effects that are persisting.

          9                 So let me highlight a few things

         10  about the support that has been put in place over

         11  these five years regarding treatment for those who

         12  are suffering the effects.  Of the New York City

         13  Firefighter Program which provides free monitoring

         14  and comprehensive physical and mental health

         15  treatment, a free monitoring and treatment program

         16  for other first responders, including the NYPD

         17  responders which is coordinated by the Mount Sinai

         18  Medical Center and the World Trade Center

         19  Environmental Health Center at Bellevue Hospital

         20  that treats anyone who is essentially not covered by

         21  those other two modes of treatment.

         22                 So these Centers not only provide

         23  treatment for all individuals that are covered, but

         24  are the source of the important data and research

         25  that we need to maintain in order to keep our
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          2  information current about the ongoing progress of

          3  the conditions.

          4                 What the Panel found was really

          5  thoughtful work had been done in developing the

          6  Registry and then putting medial centers together,

          7  and that's the good news.  But the Panel also found

          8  that these efforts and the important research they

          9  generate are in jeopardy, and that there are

         10  troublesome gaps in information about World Trade

         11  Center related health effects and the availability

         12  of treatment for those who need it.

         13                 We also determined that the City's

         14  World Trade Center Health Policies and Practices

         15  vary and could be better coordinated.  The Panel's

         16  recommendation seek to address those issues.  So now

         17  permit me, I'll highlight the 15 recommendations of

         18  the Panel.

         19                 The Panel found that despite the

         20  considerable data about 9/11 health issues generated

         21  from our centers.  There is no comprehensive

         22  repository of information about World Trade Center

         23  health and mental health treatment, policy and

         24  research.  For this reason the Panel called for the

         25  appointment City- wide World Trade Center Health
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          2  Coordinator to promote consistency and coordination

          3  about all of these policies, and to create a one-

          4  stop website easily accessible so that any

          5  individual with a desire to understand the most up-

          6  to- date information could easily access it.

          7                 We also called for the establishment

          8  of a medial working group, convening all of those

          9  researchers who are routinely working on the

         10  research to bring together their knowledge and to

         11  create a forum that we can routinely update the

         12  public about the progress of our knowledge.

         13                 In response to feedback from resident

         14  and community groups, we recommended that the City

         15  enhance coordination and outreach with respect to

         16  the construction and de- construction projects in

         17  Lower Manhattan.  So that community groups can be

         18  very well aware, know first and know completely

         19  everything that they need to know so that they need

         20  not fear for their health.

         21                 The Mayor's Panel also recommended

         22  that the City vigorously pursue federal funding to

         23  support the programs that form the cornerstone of

         24  our response to the 9/11 health concerns.

         25                 Each of these programs that we've
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          2  described that have been the life- blood of our

          3  knowledge and more important the life support to

          4  those individuals whose health is in question are at

          5  financial risk, and without a committed, sustained

          6  funding to support these programs we will not be

          7  able to continue that work.

          8                 As you may be aware, Deputy Mayor

          9  Skyler and myself testified before the House of

         10  Representatives some weeks ago, and then the Mayor

         11  again with Deputy Mayor Skyler were in Washington

         12  just a few days ago, the week before last, and we

         13  have been working.  Cas and Rima have developed a

         14  very close relationship with the staff of the

         15  Members of Congress who have been pushing very hard

         16  for us, and we've been working very closely with

         17  then and we hope have not only supported their

         18  leadership on this, but helped to them to gather the

         19  support of other members and created quite a bit of

         20  momentum on some of those requests.  We will

         21  continue that work until we have satisfied the need

         22  to have the commitment of the ongoing federal

         23  funding for these programs.

         24                 I'm going to turn it over now to Cas

         25  to continue to highlight the Panel's
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          2  recommendations, and then we can move on to the

          3  discussion.

          4                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Thanks, Linda.  Good

          5  afternoon again. Thanks for the opportunity to

          6  testify.  I'm Cas Holloway. I'm Chief of Staff to

          7  Deputy Mayor for Administration Ed Skyler.  I'm here

          8  today representing Deputy Mayor Skyler, and in my

          9  capacity as one of the Executive Directors of the

         10  Mayor's Panel.  Also as Deputy Mayor Gibbs said a

         11  few minutes ago, Rima Cohen was a Co- Executive

         12  Director with me and she'll join us for questions.

         13                 My testimony is going to cover three

         14  related topics. First, I'm going to talk a little

         15  bit more in depth about the principal findings and

         16  recommendations with respect to City employees and

         17  City agencies, which we looked at quite extensively.

         18  I'm going to talk a little about the cost estimates

         19  that the Panel made, both of the overall cost impact

         20  on the health care system of 9/11, and also what we

         21  think we need, what the City needs and what these

         22  Centers of Excellence and programs need at a minimum

         23  from the federal government to continue the services

         24  and research that is going to be necessary to

         25  address these health impacts.  Finally, I want to
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          2  talk briefly about something that Chairman Addabbo

          3  that you mentioned the reopening of the Victims

          4  Compensation Fund.

          5                 The Panel spent considerable time

          6  reviewing WTC related health policies at City

          7  agencies, including how agencies identified

          8  employees who participated in World Trade Center

          9  operations, the availability of medical and mental

         10  health monitoring and treatment to City employees

         11  who participated in those operations, and agency

         12  practices with respect to communicating to employees

         13  on an on- going basis about WTC- related health

         14  issues.

         15                 As Deputy Mayor Gibbs explained the

         16  Panel's work started with a comprehensive survey

         17  that was sent to every City agency.  We followed up

         18  with meetings with more than a dozen agencies, met

         19  with every uniformed service union, met with DC 37,

         20  a number of private- sector unions and also sat down

         21  with resident groups and a number of others.

         22  Overall we did about 60 interviews.

         23                 Let me highlight some of the

         24  principal findings. I'll refer the Committee Members

         25  to the report for the in- depth look.  But on the
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          2  three issues that I mentioned, identification,

          3  treatment and communication, let me just say a few

          4  things.

          5                 The Panel looked at the extent to

          6  which agencies identified and continued to stay in

          7  touch with employees who participated in WTC

          8  operations.  This was primarily to assess the City's

          9  capability to communicate with these employees and

         10  retirees about 9/11- related health issues.

         11  Generally speaking, the Panel found that uniformed

         12  agencies had a greater capacity and had done more to

         13  identify participants in WTC operations than non-

         14  uniformed agencies.  The FDNY and NYPD have done a

         15  particularly thorough job identifying who among

         16  their ranks responded on 9/11 or took part in the

         17  recovery and clean- up operations at the World Trade

         18  Center site.  Overall, however, the Panel found that

         19  agencies could do a better job identifying, tracking

         20  and perhaps most importantly keeping up with

         21  employees who participated in 9/11 operations, and

         22  particularly with respect to retirees.

         23                 For monitoring and treatment, the

         24  Panel reviewed 9/11- related health care programs

         25  available to City employees either through their
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          2  agency or from any other source.  I should note at

          3  the outset that all City employees who participated

          4  in WTC operations had health coverage on 9/11, and

          5  still have it if they are currently employed by the

          6  City, or if they have retired and their health

          7  benefits have vested.  As Deputy Mayor Gibbs

          8  explained, the FDNY has established a comprehensive

          9  monitoring and treatment program within its bureau

         10  of health services that's open to all members of the

         11  Department on 9/11 or soon thereafter.  No other

         12  City agency has a comparable in- house treatment

         13  program, and that's not a surprise since FDNY has

         14  long had an in- house treatment capability in

         15  recognition of the unique environmental hazards that

         16  members of the Fire Department face.  For other

         17  active duty uniformed employees, the line of duty

         18  injury process is the primary means to get treatment

         19  for illnesses and injuries arising out of

         20  participation in World Trade Center operations, or

         21  any other work related activity for that matter.

         22  However, LODI coverage ends upon retirement at which

         23  point uniformed service members must get medical

         24  treatment, whether World Trade Center related or

         25  not, through their private health insurance.
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          2                 The availability of mental health

          3  services also varies by agency.  FDNY members are

          4  eligible for treatment through FDNY's Counseling

          5  Services Unit.  Members of the NYPD who participated

          6  in WTC operations, and any other member of the

          7  Department, can get care through two NYPD-

          8  affiliated but independent programs, COPE and the

          9  Police Organization providing peer assistance known

         10  as POPPA.  The Department of Corrections offers

         11  employees mental health care services through its

         12  Correction Assistance Response for Employees Unit,

         13  and DSNY employees can receive counseling through

         14  the Department's Employee Assistance Unit, though

         15  neither of these programs are specifically targeted

         16  at 9/11 related conditions.

         17                 Beyond FDNY's WTC Monitoring and

         18  Treatment Program, the availability of WTC specific

         19  treatment options differs by agency.  As noted, no

         20  other agency has the on- going in- house treatment

         21  capability that FDNY has.  However, NYPD offered

         22  voluntary WTC- related medical and psychological

         23  screenings for anyone in the Department who

         24  participated in the WTC operations, and provided

         25  referrals for follow- up treatment based on the
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          2  results of those screenings.  NYPD continues to

          3  track the members who come in with illnesses that

          4  are determined to be WTC- related, and they've also

          5  conducted a number of studies, all with in- house

          6  funding that are going to be valuable in terms of

          7  the research. NYPD is planning at least two follow-

          8  up studies.  The Department of Corrections Health

          9  Management Division also offered evaluations to

         10  employees, and the Department of Sanitation did not

         11  offer specific services, but of course many members

         12  of the uniformed agencies are eligible to

         13  participate in the Medical Monitoring and Treatment

         14  Program coordinated by Mount Sinai.  That is the

         15  Mount Sinai Center of Excellence that Deputy Mayor

         16  Gibbs mentioned.  In addition, any City employee who

         17  believes that he or she may be suffering symptoms

         18  that are 9/11 related is eligible to go to be

         19  evaluated, and if necessary, treated at the Bellevue

         20  program.

         21                 The City's civilian and personnel

         22  agencies including the Mayor's Office were also a

         23  vital component to WTC operations, particularly EMS

         24  workers who responded on 9/11 and were present at

         25  the site for the duration of rescue, recovery and
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          2  clean- up.  EMS workers are eligible to participate

          3  in FDNY's Monitoring and Treatment Program.

          4  Generally speaking, however, active duty employees

          5  rely on Workers' Compensation and disability

          6  benefits as the primary means to get reimbursed for

          7  job- related injuries, and post- retirement benefits

          8  are handled through the pension system. Some

          9  civilian employees do qualify for the Mount Sinai

         10  Program and any employee with 9/11 related symptoms

         11  can go to Bellevue.  The Panel found, however, that

         12  with both uniformed and non- uniformed employees

         13  because most employees, with the exception of Fire

         14  Department personnel, have to sick time and to go

         15  and do the initial screening at the Mount Sinai

         16  program, or would have to use such time to do an

         17  evaluation at the Bellevue program that they may not

         18  be taking advantage of those programs.

         19                 Civilian employees also had mental

         20  health coverage under a number of programs offered

         21  at their agencies, and my written statement runs

         22  through all of those options.

         23                 In addition to treatment and

         24  identification, the Panel also reviewed agency

         25  communications about 9/11 related health issues
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          2  including about the availability of these treatment

          3  programs, ongoing research and other important

          4  information.  The Panel found that most City

          5  agencies do not currently have formal mechanisms in

          6  place to regularly communicate with City employees

          7  about WTC related issues specifically.  Though WTC-

          8  related health issues are regularly highlighted in

          9  some agency publications including for example, NYPD

         10  Finest Messages.  Uniformed agency staff and union

         11  representatives said that they widely publicized the

         12  Mount Sinai program when it was established in 2003,

         13  and the City and all its agencies conducted

         14  extensive outreach efforts to encourage enrollment

         15  in the World Trade Center Health Registry.

         16                 Overall, the Panel found that most

         17  agencies with large numbers of employees who

         18  participated in WTC operations could do more to

         19  provide information about WTC- related health

         20  issues. While there is a wealth of 9/11 related

         21  health information available at www.nyc.gov and on

         22  other websites particularly the Department of Health

         23  and Mental Hygiene's website, these resources could

         24  be supplemented and improved.

         25                 To address all of these issues, the
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          2  Panel made a number of recommendations all of which

          3  the Mayor accepted and which we are in the process

          4  of implementing.  First, the Panel recommended that

          5  the Mayor direct all relevant agencies to appoint a

          6  WTC Health Liaison within each agency who would work

          7  within the agency and with the WTC Health

          8  Coordinator that Deputy Mayor Gibbs talked about.

          9  To continue to distribute WTC- related information

         10  and to meet periodically with the WTC Coordinator

         11  and as a group to make that City policies about

         12  communications and that all relevant information is

         13  in fact filtering its way through the agencies.

         14                 One interesting thing that we found,

         15  and when we met with uniformed employees, they said

         16  that it would probably be more effective if

         17  information was communicated down through the agency

         18  rather than only through the Department of Health

         19  and Mental Hygiene.  So we are trying to address

         20  that.

         21                 We also suggested that there be a

         22  concerted effort to encourage participation and

         23  enrollment in mental health programs for people who

         24  believe they may be suffering conditions that are

         25  9/11 related.  To facilitate targeted WTC- related
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          2  communications and service delivery, we also

          3  recommended that relevant undertake a renewed effort

          4  to identify all City employees who participated in

          5  WTC operations, and that the City create a voluntary

          6  database that would be used in ongoing outreach and

          7  communications about services and the other

          8  information that we've been talking about.

          9                 To address the concern that City

         10  employees may not be participating in Mount Sinai

         11  and the Bellevue programs, the Panel recommended

         12  that employees be given the opportunity to do an

         13  initial screening or evaluation on City time.

         14                 Finally, we are going to vigorously

         15  encourage the enrollment of eligible City employees

         16  in the New York State Workers' Compensation Benefits

         17  Registry, the deadline to sign- up for which is

         18  August 14th, 2007.  We've already actually sent out

         19  a payroll stub notice on that, and we could use the

         20  help of the Members of the Committee and the Council

         21  to do whatever you can to encourage enrollment in

         22  that Registry.

         23                 Just a couple of words on two other

         24  topics, 9/11 related costs and the Victims

         25  Compensation Fund.  The Panel also looked at the
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          2  potential cost of the health impacts of 9/11, both

          3  on a nationwide basis and in terms of the minimum

          4  amount of funding that we think that the Centers of

          5  Excellence and the City, NYPD and other agencies

          6  will need to implement the Panel's recommendations.

          7                 First on the nationwide impacts.  The

          8  panel experts estimated that the gross cost of

          9  treating the health impacts is approximately $393

         10  million dollars per year.  If you assume that that

         11  number is a reliable estimate of gross costs in the

         12  five years since 9/11, and there is reason to

         13  believe that that number could be underestimated,

         14  the cost of 9/11 health impacts is already at least

         15  $2 billion.

         16                 In addition, the Panel estimated that

         17  the minimum amount of federal support needed to

         18  provide the direct treatment, research and

         19  information that people suffering from 9/11 related

         20  health effects is approximately $150 million per

         21  year, and that number will grow over time.  We

         22  expect that within four to five years, it will be

         23  approximately $160 million a year.  That funding

         24  would be used to implement all of the Panel's

         25  recommendations, including, importantly, sustaining
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          2  the Centers of Excellence, increasing substantially

          3  the monitoring capacity of the New York City Police

          4  Department, hiring the WTC coordinator and

          5  implementing all of the recommendations that Deputy

          6  Mayor Gibbs and I have talked about today.

          7                 Finally, let me talk briefly about

          8  reopening the Victim Compensation Fund.  The Panel

          9  strongly recommended and now the Mayor and Deputy

         10  Mayor Skyler and Gibbs and others have strongly

         11  lobbied Congress to reopen the Victims Compensation

         12  Fund that was created shortly after the 9/11 attacks

         13  so that the families of those who were killed, and

         14  some of the people who were physically harmed in the

         15  immediate aftermath, can get compensation quickly

         16  without having to prove that anyone did anything

         17  wrong. The Victim Compensation Fund is generally

         18  considered to have been a great success due in no

         19  small part to the tireless efforts and integrity of

         20  the Funds Administrator, Ken Fineberg.

         21                 As the Members of this Committee

         22  likely know, more than 8,000 City employees and

         23  other workers have sued the City and its

         24  contractors.  To recover they must prove that the

         25  City and/or its contractors were somehow at fault in
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          2  connection with the World Trade Center Recovery and

          3  Clean- up Operations.  Like any fault based

          4  insurance, claimants must first establish liability,

          5  and the City and its contractors have strong

          6  defenses that preclude any liability for what was

          7  clearly a necessary response to a national attack.

          8                 New Yorkers have always been proud of

          9  the way the City came together in the aftermath of

         10  9/11, but this ongoing and divisive litigation

         11  undermines that.  Compensating people who were hurt

         12  on 9/11 should not be based on a legal finding of

         13  who is to blame.  We all know who is to blame, 19

         14  murderers with box cutters. We need to focus our

         15  resources on getting people to help and support they

         16  need rather than diverting resources to litigating

         17  against those who participated in the City's

         18  recovery after 9/11. Only by reopening the Victim

         19  Compensation Fund can we ensure that those who were

         20  harmed by 9/11 get just compensation quickly, only

         21  by taking these steps can we ensure that in the

         22  event of another terrorist attack, whether in New

         23  York City or anywhere else in America, the private

         24  sector will come to the country's aid as swiftly and

         25  with the same selflessness, energy and determination
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          2  that was brought to bear on September 11th.

          3  Reopening the Victim Compensation Fund is not just

          4  about health and compensation for injury.  It's

          5  necessary to guarantee public safety in the future.To

          6  close, the health impacts of 9/11 are substantial

          7  and will be with us for years to come.  Implementing

          8  the Panel's recommendations will ensure that those

          9  who are sick, or who may become sick as a result of

         10  9/11, get the first- rate care they deserve, and it

         11  will mean that the federal government recognizes

         12  that it must commit the resources commensurate with

         13  the size, scope and duration of this national

         14  problem.  New York City cannot do it alone, and

         15  while we will never wait for the federal government

         16  or anyone else to help those who are in need, the

         17  fact is that without the help of Congress and the

         18  Administration there is a real risk that the health

         19  care needs of many thousands who responded on 9/11

         20  and who stayed in the City to help this City and the

         21  nation rebuild will go unmet.  We hope that the City

         22  Council will join us in working with our partners in

         23  Washington D.C. and Albany to prevent this entirely

         24  preventable outcome.  Thank you again for the

         25  opportunity to speak.

                                                            42

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Holloway,

          3  thank you very much.  Ms. Gibbs, thank you very

          4  much.  I do have questions from my colleagues.  I

          5  will kick it off first by saying thank you very much

          6  for the time and effort that went into this report

          7  and to the entire Panel and the hours of work that

          8  you put into it, also obviously to the work being

          9  done at Mount Sinal and Bellevue.  We are obviously

         10  appreciative of their efforts as well.  It is good

         11  to see that a lot of the recommendations are

         12  addressing the issues that are obviously prevalent

         13  today.  Back in September 2006 when this Committee

         14  did the first hearing, a lot of the issues that you

         15  have just in your recommendations mentioned were at

         16  that hearing. Basically that the agencies were all

         17  going in their different directions and there really

         18  was no oversee of what the agencies were doing

         19  differently.  So were issues that were brought to

         20  light there that have been addressed here and I

         21  appreciate that.

         22                 A question of the Panel's work, what

         23  happens to the Panel now?  I mean we have

         24  recommendations.  Ms. Gibbs, you mention in your

         25  testimony that there are still a lot of unknown's.
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          2  There is still a lot of work to do.  Is that work

          3  going to be done by the Panel?  Does the Panel

          4  follow- up its own recommendations or is the Panel

          5  just disbanded at this point?

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Let me speak to

          7  two separate components there.  One is the

          8  implementation of the recommendations.  The

          9  responsibility for ensuring that the Panel's are all

         10  fully implemented are shared with me and Deputy

         11  Mayor Skyler, which means that the two people you

         12  see to my right will be doing that work, and we are

         13  routinely meeting as a group to verify that each of

         14  the agencies is moving forward with their

         15  initiatives. We have a tracking schedule where the

         16  agencies are reporting to us on the status of their

         17  activities as well as the timetables and milestones

         18  that they have.  So the work of implementation being

         19  supervised.  Agencies are obviously doing the work

         20  and it's being supervised by my office and Deputy

         21  Mayor Skyler's office.

         22                 Separately, the Panel recommended the

         23  creation of a medical work group.  There are several

         24  smaller initiatives that have smaller groups, but

         25  the concept behind the medical work group was really
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          2  to create a forum where the experts in the emerging

          3  knowledge could bring that knowledge together, and

          4  as a group, ensure a close collaboration among the

          5  members and really to create an ongoing forum where

          6  that knowledge is shared and advanced.  The work

          7  group itself will be made up of medical

          8  professionals, many of those who have been part of a

          9  small informal network of professionals that have

         10  worked on this issue.  They will be supplemented by

         11  additional experts in the field, and some more lay

         12  experts, if I could say, to bring in external

         13  perspective of those that aren't deeply immersed in

         14  the work so that there can be a greater reflection

         15  of the implications beyond the immediate illnesses

         16  that are being researched by the group.

         17                 The focus of that group is also

         18  required to report annually on the status of the

         19  knowledge so that it won't be just individuals

         20  sharing the information with each other and

         21  informing each other, but will really be in tune

         22  with the need to keep the public up to speed and

         23  fully knowledgeable about the emerging nature of the

         24  diseases that we detect.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Will either the
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          2  medical work group or the Panel be issuing another

          3  report?  Will that work group who meets annually  --

          4    I mean is there a written report that is

          5  generated?

          6                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The medical work

          7  group is required to issue a written report

          8  annually, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point,

         10  we have questions from Council Member Monserrate.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         12  very much, Mr. Chair.  I have a few questions.

         13  Thank you for your testimony  -- Sorry about that.

         14  A little technical difficultly, we'll move the mic

         15  over a little bit.  Thank you for your testimony

         16  today.  I have a few questions.  In particular, the

         17  first question I have is regarding the comprehensive

         18  survey which I think you one of you testified to.

         19  Tell me about this comprehensive survey where we

         20  identify first responders and their ailments.

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The City Agency

         22  Survey where we ask the agencies for everything that

         23  they've done?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Cas, do you want
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          2  to do that?

          3                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Sure.  We put together

          4  a survey basically right after the Mayor announced

          5  the formation of the Panel, and it covered a number

          6  of areas.  We basically asked agencies to identify

          7  in the aggregate how many people in their agencies

          8  had responded on 9/11 and participated in WTC

          9  rescue, recovery and clean- up operations, and that

         10  was a very broad standard.  So basically we left it

         11  up to the agencies to report back to us and

         12  determine from their perspective how many people had

         13  participated in operations.  We also then asked them

         14  to describe for us whether there were any WTC

         15  specific monitoring treatment or other services that

         16  were being made available and that was also to be

         17  described within the context of the normal health

         18  care that is available whether a uniform or non-

         19  uniform employee.  We also asked them to describe

         20  what they were doing in terms of either keeping up

         21  with members of the agency and retirees who had

         22  participated in WTC operations and what the nature

         23  of those communications was, whether they were

         24  keeping them up- to- date on research, and making

         25  them available of programs.  By the way, the focus
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          2  of all of this was for service delivery, making sure

          3  that finding out first of all what capability does

          4  the City have right now, did it have at that time to

          5  basically reach out to all the people who

          6  participated if we wanted to do that, and if we

          7  didn't have that capability or we thought it was

          8  insufficient.  That's why we ended up with the

          9  recommendations that we did.  So the survey

         10  basically covered those areas, and it's actually

         11  attached as an appendix, I think appendix 7, to the

         12  report.  So we could certainly provide it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         14  Okay.  I'm going to take a look at the report now.

         15  When you say broader, what's broad?  In other words,

         16  beginning September 11th to what date?  Is there a

         17  specific date outlined?

         18                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Well the report

         19  basically defines the WTC operations period as

         20  September 11th through June 2002.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: June 2002.

         22    So anyone who responded or was working in or

         23  around Ground Zero  --

         24                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Right.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And we
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          2  know every City employee that is under that

          3  classification?

          4                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Well what we know is we

          5  know what the agencies have reported were the

          6  aggregate numbers of people.  We didn't ask for

          7  lists of every individual, but we asked for

          8  aggregate numbers of people.  Then we followed up

          9  with agencies about how those people were

         10  identified, what was the source of the information,

         11  and, in fact, some agencies have databases that they

         12  are keeping up- to- date in terms of retirees and

         13  much more information than that in some.  Other

         14  agencies had lists, but they appear to have been

         15  static lists.  So one of the things that we

         16  recommended was that we do a renewed identification

         17  effort so that we can follow- up.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: So in this, there

         19  is an effort to have information disseminated

         20  through agencies to the extent that there is an

         21  employee that hasn't before let anyone know that

         22  they were part of, that effort that we reach out to

         23  them and we find them, and also have World Trade

         24  Center liaisons at each agency to be the point of

         25  contact for our World Trade Center City- wide
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          2  coordinator to be able to pull up that information

          3  from agencies, but also to disseminate the

          4  information out to agencies.  So the core of that

          5  recommendation is really to create a network of

          6  information sharing, pathways for information to

          7  flow both up around need, and down around knowledge

          8  and services.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.  I

         10  guess my line of questioning really is a concern

         11  because I think there is a certain amount of

         12  discretion that we're leaving to the agencies to

         13  create these databases, and perhaps I'm just saying

         14  this as an assumption.  Perhaps the Fire Department

         15  and the NYPD might do an even better job than some

         16  of the other agencies at identifying specifically

         17  who was there and at what time they were there.  I'm

         18  just concerned that perhaps there should be a more

         19  uniformed approach of collecting that data

         20  permanently.

         21                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Actually, that's

         22  interesting that you note that because what  --  I

         23  think this is actually in the final text of the

         24  recommendation, but it says that the identification

         25  that is undertaken by agencies should be based on
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          2  the best practices of the FDNY and NYPD, and also

          3  part of notion behind the recommendation, and there

          4  are some specifics in the report, is that DoITT and

          5  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, and the

          6  agencies that have already done a comprehensive

          7  identification effort, would get together and

          8  establish some standards so that agencies would be

          9  collecting common information and that we would do

         10  as thorough a job as we can.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         12  Well I guess I accept what you're saying.  I'm just

         13  saying that if there was iron clad uniform method of

         14  reporting, it would probably be easier so that you

         15  could maintain it or have access to that

         16  information.  I think that that would go further,

         17  but in keeping with that thought is my question

         18  regarding the State enrollment which you stated

         19  expires on  --

         20                 MR. HOLLOWAY:  --  August 14th, this

         21  year.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: On August

         23  14th, right. So by August 14th whoever doesn't apply

         24  is in essence not eligible. Is that correct?

         25                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Well under the law,

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  they would be time barred from putting their name on

          3  that list, and then could potentially then be

          4  implications for somebody who would've missed that

          5  deadline.  Really the way to address that what you

          6  would have to do either an amendment, or an

          7  additional State legislation to open that up.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: To extend

          9  that?

         10                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Yes.  That's certainly

         11  that could be something that could be lobbied for,

         12  but that's why it's critical that we do as much

         13  outreach as possible to get people to sign up now

         14  because we have the opportunity now.  We know we

         15  have that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I guess in

         17  keeping that that's my concern about identifying and

         18  ensuring that every single City employee that was a

         19  part of the search, recovery and clean- up effort is

         20  applying.

         21                 Let me shift gears for a moment, and

         22  this was a thought that I had.  Outside of

         23  individuals complaining of an ailment, is there any

         24  broad physical or medical testing of our employees

         25  currently?  Is there a plan for that?

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The Bellevue

          3  Center  --  If you are a uniformed officer, the

          4  Sinai program and Police Department program are a

          5  monitoring program meaning that they will check for

          6  an individual who would like to, even though they

          7  feel healthy, would like to have their conditions

          8  checked.  They can do that kind of monitoring.  The

          9  Bellevue program is a treatment program, and so if

         10  you are an individual who has a concern that they

         11  may be sick then you can go to Bellevue for

         12  assessment and treatment, but it does not have a

         13  monitoring component.  Rima, do you want to add?

         14                 MS. COHEN: I just want to mention

         15  that you don't have to be a uniformed employee to

         16  access the Mount Sinai program. You have to meet

         17  other criteria for numbers of hours worked, but you

         18  have to have been involved in rescue, recovery and

         19  operations down at the site, and those people are

         20  eligible for the monitoring and screening and

         21  treatment that Sinai provides.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: How do we

         23  disseminate this information to City employees that

         24  this is available at Mount Sinai, to be tested?

         25  Right, in essence, we're testing them.  Is that what
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          2  it is?  Can you explain what the testing involves

          3  and then explain how we disseminate the information

          4  to  --

          5                 MS. COHEN: Starting with your first

          6  question about disseminating information, when the

          7  Sinai program was established around 2002, 2003, the

          8  program kept evolving.  There was very aggressive

          9  outreach by the agencies, by the unions that

         10  represent those personnel, and there was other

         11  outreach that was done by Sinai.  One of the things

         12  that we want to do going forward is create

         13  mechanisms to have sort of more formalized means of

         14  communication with our employees, and with the

         15  public generally, and that's why we created the WTC

         16  Health Coordinator and the website and so forth.

         17  But there was very good outreach, and I think most

         18  of our City employees who are eligible do know about

         19  the Sinai program.  I think the program that we need

         20  to do more outreach for is the much newer program,

         21  the Bellevue program that provides treatment for

         22  people who were not involved in rescue and recovery

         23  operations, but are experiencing World Trade Center

         24  related symptoms.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: And there it's
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          2  very interesting because we haven't done  --  we

          3  have funding that the Mayor has generously provided

          4  to support these programs in absence of the federal

          5  support and we have not yet spent our public

          6  communications dollars.  We're putting together more

          7  campaigns.  Despite that, we've had a big uptick in

          8  the number of calls that have come in to Bellevue,

          9  and I think that's the benefit of the press

         10  attention that has come to the studies, to the

         11  Panel's report, to the Mayor's testimony and to

         12  hearings like this.  That has been a very effective

         13  means of communication for individuals who are

         14  eligible for those programs.  We're not going to end

         15  there.  We're not going to rely on that for the

         16  long- term, and we have included resources to do

         17  public communications and outreach.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.  I

         19  understand that every agency, just about, there is

         20  some form of internal communications  --

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  --  And

         23  adding information to the paystubs is very good, a

         24  direct letter to the employee, to his home.  I don't

         25  know if that's been done.
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          2                 MR. HOLLOWAY: We'll look at that.  I

          3  think one of the first things that these agency

          4  liaisons need to do, and we're sitting down with the

          5  World Trade Center Health Coordinator, is to first

          6  of all develop a plan to make sure, whether it's

          7  through a direct letter or additional paystubs, or

          8  however we do it, that there is direct communication

          9  within the agency to all employees who could

         10  potentially be eligible for these or want to take

         11  advantage of these services.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         13  Mr. Chair, if you may indulge me for one more

         14  question.  I know that I've probably taken more than

         15  I should have.  Okay.  Here it goes.  The Mayor's

         16  Panel when they go out  --  Do they evaluate

         17  programs?  Can you explain how they go about doing

         18  this and what programs they have evaluated or have

         19  been to?

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: The two co-

         21  directors of the Panel I think are in the best

         22  position to respond to that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Sure.

         24                 MS. COHEN: Well we didn't do formal

         25  evaluations in the sense  --  Neither Cas nor I are
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          2  clinicians or medical researchers, but we did a very

          3  thorough process of site visits.  We visited of

          4  course several times all of the Centers of

          5  Excellence. We also talked with and visited many

          6  other mental health and physical health programs

          7  that were designed for people who were suffering

          8  from World Trade Center related illnesses, and we

          9  talked to many, many people who have accessed those

         10  programmed, who have studied the programs, who have

         11  concerns about the programs.  So we really did try

         12  to cast a wide net and get as many prospectives as

         13  we could about the quality of the programs and the

         14  gaps in coverage and treatment and monitoring and so

         15  forth.

         16                 MR. HOLLOWAY: One thing I would add,

         17  and maybe this ties back to your question about what

         18  happens when you into these programs, the FDNY,

         19  Mount Sinai and Bellevue programs are well

         20  coordinated in the sense that the testing regimen

         21  that happens when you go in is I don't want to

         22  standardized, but they do a lot of the same things.

         23  So it's standard to get a chest x- ray, spirometry,

         24  which is your respiratory testing, and some other

         25  standard testing that you get, and then based on the
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          2  results of that, that dictates whether or not you

          3  would need treatment and further follow- up.  So

          4  from the perspective of what's happening at all of

          5  these places, there seems to be general agreement

          6  among the experts, many of whom were on all the

          7  Panel, Dr. Riban (phonetic) from Bellevue, Dr.

          8  Prezant from FDNY, Dr. Kleiman (phonetic) from NYPD

          9  who is here with us today.  All are aware of what

         10  these testing regimens are and obviously weigh in on

         11  them and contribute to what they are.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thanks.  I

         13  actually had the opportunity to not only tour and

         14  speak to some of the emergency responders that

         15  participated, but I also myself participated in a

         16  program called the New York Detoxification Project.

         17  I was wondering if you had the opportunity to have

         18  toured that specific program yet.

         19                 MR. HOLLOWAY: We didn't tour that

         20  program.  However, the Department of Sanitation,

         21  which had a number of employees participate in that

         22  program  --  We reviewed all of the literature for

         23  that program and the report actually details some of

         24  the participation that Sanitation in particular

         25  employees had in that program.  So we know that was
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          2  one of among a host of programs both mental and

          3  medical that were available to City employees and

          4  others following 9/11.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: But you

          6  haven't toured it yet?

          7                 MR. HOLLOWAY: No.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: I think

          9  I'd like to follow- up with you at some other point.

         10    Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         12  Council Member Monserrate, I also had the

         13  opportunity of touring the Detoxification Project

         14  treatment, and it's quite interesting. Bottom line,

         15  and then we have other questions from Council

         16  Members. Before I get to Council Member McMahon then

         17  Council Member Mark Viverito, the question is, the

         18  bottom line, are you confident with the amount of

         19  outreach?  Do you feel that we are really reaching

         20  out to those who need to be reached out to?  Are you

         21  confident in that?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I think two

         23  answers.  One within City agencies, I believe it

         24  will be very thorough.  I actually think that the

         25  efforts to date have been thorough.  They haven't
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          2  been coordinated from the center, but they have been

          3  present in every agency, and just  --  This is

          4  something that, because for individuals who are

          5  employees of agencies and present in the City,

          6  there's just so much knowledge about this.  I'm also

          7  confident with certain populations that are resident

          8  or present in Lower Manhattan who may have been

          9  affected that the collaboration that exists between

         10  HHC, Bellevue Center, and Beyond Ground Zero, a

         11  community based organization that has worked with

         12  us, has done very, really I think very

         13  groundbreaking outreach into certain portions of the

         14  resident population.  So I feel that that has been a

         15  strong model to build on.  Where I think we have a

         16  gap of outreach that the Panel has recommended

         17  further work be done is in the remaining resident,

         18  office worker and commercial establishment

         19  operations in Lower Manhattan, and the expansion of

         20  the Bellevue Center is to accommodate the increase

         21  in demand that we expect not only from late emerging

         22  diseases, but more significantly we believe from

         23  individuals who knowing that resource is there will

         24  turn to that and take advantage of it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Then on the
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          2  heels of that question, are you confident that the

          3  time line in which somebody who does come forward

          4  and seeks help does get the help?  That time period

          5  from the moment they ask for the help and the moment

          6  they get it, are you confident that we're moving in

          7  the right direction with that time line?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Well thank you

          9  for adding the phrase moving in the right direction

         10  because we know that the current capacity at

         11  Bellevue is not yet sufficient to meet a request for

         12  an appointment in a timely fashion.  We've had a big

         13  increase in demand, and my understanding is that

         14  there is a wait period of a number of weeks before

         15  somebody can be seen.  Bellevue is working very

         16  diligently to expand their capacity.  The upcoming

         17  graduation class is an important time frame for

         18  them, and the expectation is that by this summer,

         19  they will be much better able to timely respond to

         20  individuals requests.  That's their goal. That's our

         21  expectation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm hopeful

         23  that, again, periodically when this Committee does

         24  have these hearings, we have a positive follow- up

         25  hopefully somewhere down the line.
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Great.

          3  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Questions from

          5  Council Member McMahon.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Addabbo.  I thank you for convening

          8  this hearing, and let me just say to the panel that

          9  we commend you because I think this report was

         10  really needed for everyone to understand the issue

         11  first and foremost because it's such a large issue,

         12  and I think it gives everyone a way to focus and to

         13  understand the issue.  I think the road map that you

         14  lay out to move forward as you say from here, and

         15  what we have to do collectively as a City to do the

         16  right thing by those people who were willing to risk

         17  their lives on a moment's notice, and to continue

         18  that through the clean- up process is certainly

         19  appropriate.

         20                 The concern I have, and I don't know

         21  if it's contained in the whole report because I just

         22  got my bound copy now, but that's a joke to one of

         23  the Mayor's representatives.  One of the concerns I

         24  have is that within the City, and within the

         25  different agencies, that City employees are treated
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          2  evenly or equally in terms of the processes that

          3  they have to undertake, whether it's to get medical

          4  treatment, whether it's to get medical leave,

          5  whether it's to get disability payments or status

          6  because of what happened to them at the World Trade

          7  Center.  Certainly, I know in my office I received

          8  complaints especially from Police Department

          9  employees who find that at the medical board review

         10  stage there's a standard that's applied that seems

         11  to be maybe different than other agencies have.

         12  Then there are agencies that have different

         13  standards applied in determining whether or not they

         14  have status to be on medical leave, and what

         15  benefits they achieve or received, and then when

         16  they go before the pension board what standard is

         17  applied.  Sometimes there's a State standard that's

         18  applied and sometimes not.  Can you tell me in your

         19  opinion is there uniformity in the process, and if

         20  not, how can we get there?

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Well first I want

         22  to thank you for the recognition on the work of the

         23  report.  When we began the process, it was really

         24  quite frankly difficult to get our arms around it,

         25  and it felt like the pieces were really hard to
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          2  understand and they were all over the place.  I

          3  really do, again, want to recognize the Panel staff,

          4  Cas and Rima and many staff working with them who

          5  put together a very clear and coherent approach that

          6  allows us all to focus on the work that remains to

          7  be done.  So thank you.

          8                 On the issue of uniformity, I think

          9  the goal that the Panel has articulated is

         10  uniformity where necessary and appropriate which is

         11  in many regards set in the recommendations that are

         12  included is the goal to bring that uniformity to

         13  City agencies.  There are many cases where the

         14  special provisions of law have been put into place

         15  for one work force and not another, and some of

         16  those provisions are not provisions that either are

         17  that we would recommend for everybody or, quite

         18  frankly, affordable to the City, and others that are

         19  not based in medical need.  So in some cases those

         20  provisions also many subject to collective

         21  bargaining and the result of negotiations of the

         22  particular unions where there are exceptions that

         23  are peculiar to a particular work force, those will

         24  remain as they stand, but the goal of the City is

         25  not to ensure that everybody similarly have those
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          2  extended to them.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But could you

          4  give me examples of the differences or the

          5  peculiarities as you mentioned? I mean are different

          6  standards applied to different employees?  For

          7  instance, a police officer appears to have a

          8  different standard applied at the medical board

          9  stage as opposed to other employees. It would seem

         10  to me that our goal here would be to treat  --  And

         11  I understand all the problems of collective

         12  bargaining and historically different provisions,

         13  but everybody was doing the same job on 9/11 and

         14  thereafter and there should be  --  It would seem to

         15  me an laudable goad would be uniformity and the

         16  standard of what constitutes a basis for medical

         17  leave or what basis a line of duty disability should

         18  be the same across the board.  Could you

         19  specifically address with the Police Department why

         20  is it at the medical review board stage they are

         21  held to the Department of Health standard as opposed

         22  to the standards that come from the State

         23  legislation?

         24                 MR. HOLLOWAY: You mean the

         25  Presumption Bill?  Well it's interesting.  I mean we
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          2  looked at these issues, and as you say, they are

          3  complicated.  One thing that is clear is that a lot

          4  of these decisions are based on medical

          5  determinations and so there are some medical

          6  determinations, for example, within the Police

          7  Department and Fire Department and then you add to

          8  that the Presumption Bill which isn't really a

          9  medical determination.  It's more of a statutory

         10  declaration of what is going to be covered.

         11                 The Panel during its deliberations

         12  recognized that there is not complete uniformity in

         13  terms of if you were at the site and did certain

         14  work.  That then translates into precisely the same

         15  treatment across all of the agencies, but a lot of

         16  that disparity is caused to some extent by medical

         17  determinations.  So the Panel did not seek to kind

         18  of resolve once and for all all of the potential

         19  differences of medical opinion in any particular

         20  case.  I mean as you know, and one thing the Panel

         21  confronted daily was it's very difficult to tie any

         22  particular cause to any individual case, and these

         23  are complex and difficult.  So we did not seek to

         24  kind of look behind medical judgements.  Having said

         25  that, through the Mayor's Medical Panel, and the
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          2  continued collaboration of the Panel members, it was

          3  an issue that was recognized in terms of the

          4  specific medical judgements that we would need to

          5  continue to collaborate on moving forward.  We may

          6  see some of the disparities that you're referring to

          7  over time resolve themselves.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Well I

          9  appreciate that, but again, and as you said Mr.

         10  Holloway, that we want to make sure that first rate

         11  medical care is available, and I think also to

         12  provide for those who have to be provided for

         13  because of their service to the City and their

         14  country on 9/11.

         15                 One last thing to say is that I think

         16  it should be a goal to not only provide first rate

         17  care, but to remove the hassles from the process

         18  that quite often can exist in traditional Workers'

         19  Comp type settings, and traditional first party

         20  benefit claim type of settings, that it would seem

         21  that to have a uniform system, both the treatment

         22  and then the claim and the result, should be fair

         23  across the board.  I know you hear me, and I hear

         24  what you're saying.  I know it's complicated, but I

         25  would urge you as you continue to work to streamline

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  the process if you will and to have uniformity in

          3  it.

          4                 In the case of the police officers,

          5  is it correct that say an officer has a

          6  manifestation of a 9/11 related illness and they go

          7  to the medical board and receive medical leave, they

          8  don't have the same benefits moving forward from

          9  there as other agencies?  I mean are their medical

         10  benefits and their medical bills paid until they

         11  reach the pension board?

         12                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Well if a

         13  determination's made that a police officer has a

         14  line- of- duty injury whether it's 9/11 related or

         15  not, they get all of their medical treatment paid

         16  for.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But there is

         18  a hiatus period there from the time that you're

         19  determined to be ill, you're put on medical leave,

         20  and then there is a period until you get to the

         21  pension board I think which makes a determination of

         22  whether or not it is line- of- duty injury.  Am I

         23  correct in that?

         24                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Oh you mean in terms of

         25  whether  -- Well you could have line- of- duty
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          2  injuries and then somebody could actually come back

          3  to active service, right?  Or are you talking about

          4  a situation where somebody is going to get a

          5  disability and then basically retire?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Actually the

          7  second more, but even the first scenario is

          8  possible, but the point is if I become ill from  --

          9  I'm ill.  I'm a police officer.  I was at 9/11.  I'm

         10  ill.  I can't go to work.  The first thing is I go

         11  to the medical board, and they say you're ill.  You

         12  can't go back to work, and that will then institute

         13  a process that will get me to a determination of

         14  whether or not I'm so ill that I can't go back to

         15  work and that it's a line- of- duty related injury.

         16  That's correct, right?

         17                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Right.  I mean

         18  generally yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: But in that

         20  hiatus period between the time that I go out on

         21  medical leave because I go out on medical leave for

         22  the flu as well, but I go out on medical leave until

         23  I have that determination of it be causally related

         24  to 9/11 and permanent.  Are my medical bills paid

         25  during that time period, or do all my benefits nor
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          2  to me the same as any other agency?

          3                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Maybe the best thing to

          4  do is to follow- up.  I want to make sure that I

          5  understand specifically  -- If you're talking about

          6  the gap between when the determination that

          7  something is actually line- of- duty is made, or the

          8  pension determination is made, those are two

          9  slightly different things. You could potentially

         10  have gaps.  How does that compare to other uniformed

         11  agencies?  I would want to make sure that the answer

         12  that I give is precise.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay because

         14  the complaint I get in my office is that during that

         15  gap period, the officers have to pay their own

         16  medical bills.  That's the complaint I get. So if

         17  you could look into that and then we'll carry it on

         18  further. Thank you.

         19                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         23  Council Member McMahon.  Let me also just reiterate

         24  the issue that I have also it is with the earlier

         25  point made about workers who are being treated

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  differently.  We have similar illnesses from the

          3  same exact instance of a tragedy occurring, and what

          4  I heard from that previous hearing that we had here

          5  in September of 2006 is that certain of our City

          6  workers are being treated differently.  I would like

          7  to, again, break down those barriers.  If we could

          8  work on that, and make sure that everybody gets

          9  their fair share of obviously treatment available.

         10  So if there are differences, different

         11  determinations, different use of definitions,

         12  different for different agencies, I would like to

         13  see if we could break that down and make sure that,

         14  again, most of our City workers are treated the same

         15  and get the help they need.  Questions from Council

         16  Member Melissa Mark- Viverito.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         18  you, Mr. Chair. First of all, I would just like to

         19  echo the words of my colleague, Council Member

         20  McMahon, about the importance of this report and

         21  really the effort that has gone into it.  So we very

         22  much appreciate it, and I want to personally thank

         23  you for that work and the Mayor.

         24                 I want to just follow- up on some

         25  clarity questions based on the testimony that I've
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          2  seen here.  The recommendations that you make when

          3  you talk about, for instance, one about appointing

          4  World Trade Center health liaisons within agencies,

          5  now is that in place already or is that happening?

          6                 MR. HOLLOWAY: That's happening.  That

          7  is happening. That is in the process of being

          8  implemented.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Do you

         10  know what percentage of that is complete in terms of

         11  agencies that have appointed someone?

         12                 MR. HOLLOWAY: We're at the stage

         13  where administratively the directive to do that is

         14  going to go out shortly, and then we expect that in

         15  very short order that those people would be

         16  identified and then that they would start doing

         17  their work.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: It's frustrating

         19  that things can't happen immediately.  We also don't

         20  want to get to far ahead of ourselves.  The critical

         21  milestone there is to identify the World Trade

         22  Center Coordinator, that central person at the

         23  Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, and the

         24  liaisons are the spokes to the hub of the

         25  coordinator and the coordinator will be
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          2  communicating with the liaison.  So we can begin the

          3  process for the agencies to think about the

          4  appropriate person, but the axe can begin once the

          5  coordinator comes in and starts those

          6  communications.  The Department of Health and Mental

          7  Hygiene has posted the position, and has gotten a

          8  very good response, and they have begun the

          9  interviewing process.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Now

         11  would also part of --  I kind of get the sense that

         12  it may, but just to confirm, would part of that

         13  liaison's responsibility be also to maybe help those

         14  that are affected that are working in the agencies

         15  really navigate the system?  You're talking about

         16  the Compensation Fund.  You're talking about the

         17  Workers' Comp.  You know there's all these different

         18  elements that sometimes people may get lost in the

         19  bureaucracy unfortunately.  So is that person really

         20  there also to help navigate?

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: That's exactly

         22  right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:

         24  Question with regards to the New York State Workers'

         25  Compensation Board and enrollment in that, do we
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          2  have a grasp on really the eligible number of City

          3  employees that would eligible for that and how many

          4  have actually enrolled or registered themselves?

          5                 MR. HOLLOWAY: I know that as of a

          6  date listed in the report there was I think 3,000

          7  enrollees, but we should get you an up- to- date

          8  number on that.  That's not a difficult thing to do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: And in

         10  terms of eligible?  The number?

         11                 MR. HOLLOWAY: You know I want to make

         12  sure.  The eligibility criteria are not at the tip

         13  of tongues so I want to make sure there is  --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: That

         15  would lead me to another question about the criteria

         16  in terms of being eligible and how onerous is it

         17  potentially?

         18                 MR. HOLLOWAY: It's not particularly

         19  onerous.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         21                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Just in terms of

         22  thinking right now how many do we estimate could be

         23  eligible in the City work force, I would want to get

         24  back to you on that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Is it
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          2  over 10,000?

          3                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Hard to say.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: It's

          5  hard to say. Okay.  I'm just trying to get a sense

          6  of what the gap is.

          7                 MS. COHEN: I don't think we know the

          8  total number off the top of our heads.  I don't know

          9  if that number can be found, but I know the general

         10  sense was that as of the last time we inquired when

         11  there were 3,000 enrollees there was a general sense

         12  that there are many more that should be signed up,

         13  and that's why we put in the recommendation that we

         14  really need to do much more aggressive outreach

         15  because we know that there are more than that. I

         16  can't tell you a precise number, but we know 3,000

         17  is too low.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: That's

         19  obviously a concern to make sure that people that

         20  are eligible are signing up. The other question with

         21  regards to the costs when you talk about sustaining

         22  the Mount Sinai, FDNY programs sustaining the

         23  Bellevue program, you know are these programs

         24  expected to run out at some point?  Where are we at

         25  financially with that?  What's the cost in that
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          2  sense?  I mean you kind of give a greater number,

          3  but individually and in what way are those programs

          4  really kind of bottom lined in the budgets

          5  especially when you talk about Mount Sinai, or in

          6  the City, and at Bellevue for instance?  If you

          7  could, give us a little bit of sense of that, of

          8  what the time line is on those.

          9                 MS. COHEN: Well each of the programs

         10  is a different situation, but both the Mount Sinai

         11  program, and the Fire Department program are very

         12  concerned about being able to continue absent a new

         13  infusion of dollars which we hope will be federal

         14  support.  They are concerned about not being able to

         15  continue past this year, and this is a situation

         16  they've faced for several years as they go from

         17  year- to- year living on sort of patchwork grants

         18  and private philanthropy and federal grants.

         19                 The Bellevue program, as you know,

         20  was really just created with City funds in

         21  September, and the report suggests even expanding

         22  upon that commitment.  So that program is funded,

         23  and initially the program that the Mayor put in

         24  place was expected to see about 6,000 patients.  The

         25  Panel recommended that that be expanded, and the
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          2  City has committed to that.  However, we do, and the

          3  Mayor has made a very strong pitch in this regard,

          4  as we suggested in the report, these be federal

          5  funds, that the City should not be asked to bear the

          6  entire financial cost on its own. So although we had

          7  stepped up to the plate, we really do believe that

          8  this should be a federal responsibility.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Thank

         10  you for that. Lastly, I just want to go back and

         11  just emphasize what my two prior colleagues had

         12  mentioned about the different processes that might

         13  exist within the agencies for a same condition,

         14  people that have been impacted by their work at

         15  World Trade Center that they may have to go through

         16  different processes.  I think that is something that

         17  really should be looked at in some ways, and if that

         18  is not a recommendation of the report, then maybe

         19  that's an additional consideration.  Thank you very

         20  much for your answers.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         22  much, Council Member Mark- Viverito.  Three quick

         23  questions because I know you are on limited time

         24  here.  First question regarding the coordinator,

         25  time line on a possible hiring?
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: It's really

          3  fairly eminent. Information from the Department of

          4  Health and Mental Hygiene is that they got a number

          5  of very good candidates.  They wanted to make sure

          6  that they had an opportunity to talk to all of them.

          7  That required some travel for some, and once that's

          8  complete, my sense is that they have several strong

          9  candidates that they can choose from.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I wish you a lot

         11  of luck on the hiring.

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: City time,

         14  obviously it's one of the recommendations and one of

         15  the issues that were addressed by the Panel.  It's

         16  an issue that came up at the hearing in 2006 that

         17  this Committee had, and a lot of the workers

         18  mentioned there again there's a difference between

         19  obviously City workers, who were given time to go

         20  for their treatment or for evaluation and those who

         21  went on their own personal time.  For those who went

         22  on their own personal time, and now that that is

         23  being reconsidered going forward, can the Panel at

         24  least entertain the idea of retroactive compensation

         25  who went on personal time?
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          2                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: I think the

          3  reason that we very much endorsed the provision of

          4  City time is that we wanted to encourage those who

          5  might be suffering but don't know it to take the

          6  effort to go and get the assessment.  For those who

          7  went, clearly the their own personal motivation was

          8  enough.  So I think the goal of using the City time

          9  as the incentive is not as compelling.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Their personal

         11  motivation may be in that they were ill and they had

         12  to come forward, and then again, going on their own

         13  time because obviously their life may be at stake.

         14  I understand it's an issue being considered now by

         15  the Panel.  Again, I am just wondering if we can

         16  consider it for those who had made the attempt to go

         17  previously.

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Well I can

         19  certainly take the recommendation back.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I would

         21  appreciate that.  Thank you very much.

         22                 Mr. Holloway mentioned in his

         23  testimony litigation. Toward the end of your

         24  testimony  --  We shouldn't be directing our efforts

         25  towards litigation.  We should be going forward and
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          2  going after federal dollars which of course we all

          3  agree on, but just for a moment let's talk about

          4  litigation because obviously it has come back to me

          5  that there may be issues with regards to our Law

          6  Department and other hurdles before a person who

          7  needs the help gets the help.  Do we know of any

          8  hurdles within our Law Department or what is the

          9  pipeline that basically the City is involved with

         10  litigation as our workers are awaiting to get

         11  assistance?  Do we know of any backlog?

         12                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Well let's see.  I

         13  think that the litigation I was referring to in the

         14  testimony was litigation that has been affirmatively

         15  been initiated by plaintiffs and there are 8,000 of

         16  them now who are basically suing the City and the

         17  contractors saying the City was at fault in the way

         18  that the operations were conducted and some harm was

         19  suffered as a result of that.  So that's ongoing.

         20  If you're referring to processes that the Law

         21  Department is involved in, there is Workers'

         22  Compensation. Workers' Compensation are claims.  The

         23  Law Department does administrate them.  There isn't

         24  a backlog.  One thing though that the Panel did look

         25  into and learn is that some of the same problems

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  that are raised in the notion that somebody has to

          3  prove fault in order to be compensated if they were

          4  harmed as a result of 9/11, also show themselves.

          5  In the Workers' Compensation scheme, you have to

          6  show, in order to get Workers' Compensation, that

          7  you were injured during work as a result of

          8  something that's work- related. So what we found,

          9  and this is discussed briefly in the report, and

         10  again, there's an appendix on this in the report,

         11  that the Workers' Compensation for various reasons

         12  is not particularly well- suited to these claims,

         13  these situations where you could have late emerging

         14  illness, where the connection where if you break

         15  your arm on the job, that's pretty obvious, but if

         16  there are problems of causation, the same medical

         17  issues that arise in other context, arise there. So

         18  it's not so much a back log, but some of those

         19  claims given the nature of the Workers' Compensation

         20  system which requires certain proof means that I

         21  guess some people may not be recovering either as

         22  quickly or as much as they would like.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Workers'

         24  Compensation cases 9/11 related in the Law

         25  Department, do you have any idea of the numbers?
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          2                 MR. HOLLOWAY: I don't have them with

          3  me, but we can get them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'd appreciate

          5  that.  You know, we are scratching the surface here,

          6  and I hope you agree this is a much larger issue as

          7  we go forward and as we put years between us and the

          8  actual tragic date of 9/11.  This Committee looks

          9  forward to working with the Panel.  We appreciate

         10  all your time and effort with regards to the report,

         11  but again, we have a lot of work to do, and I look

         12  forward to doing it together.  So we, again, look

         13  forward to keeping in touch on this issue.

         14                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Thank you very much.

         15                 DEPUTY MAYOR GIBBS: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair, and thank you for your leadership on this

         17  issue, and appreciate that effort.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Ms.

         19  Gibbs.  Thank you very much, Mr. Holloway.

         20                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Have a good day

         22  now.  Our next panel, Dr. Jacqueline Moline from

         23  Mount Sinai.  Dr. Moline, thank you for being here

         24  today.  Give your testimony, please.

         25                 DR. MOLINE: Thank you.  Chairman
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          2  Addabbo, and other Members of the Committee on Civil

          3  Service and Labor, I would like to thank you for

          4  inviting me.  I'm Jacqueline Moline and now I'm

          5  louder.  Start from the beginning.  Chairman

          6  Addabbo, thank you for inviting me here today, and

          7  other Council Members of the Committee on Civil

          8  Service and Labor.  My name is Dr. Jacqueline

          9  Moline, and I'm an Associate Professor and Vice

         10  Chair of the Department of Community and Preventive

         11  Medicine and an Associate Professor of Internal

         12  Medicine at the Mount Sinai School of Medicine in

         13  New York City.  I'm also the Director of the World

         14  Trade Center Medical Monitoring and Treatment

         15  Program Clinical Center at Mount Sinai.

         16                 In the days, weeks and months that

         17  followed September 11th, ten of thousands hard-

         18  working New Yorkers and Americans from all across

         19  our City and nation responded selflessly without

         20  concern for their well- being when the nation and

         21  the federal government called upon them at the World

         22  Trade Center area and also at the Staten Island

         23  Landfill.  Many of these workers and volunteers have

         24  become seriously ill as a result.  Therefore, it is

         25  essential that we continue to provide aid and
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          2  facilitate access to this aid for all those who were

          3  there for us now and in the future.

          4                 Many uniformed City and other

          5  personnel performed the grizzly task of sifting

          6  through thousands of tons of rubble searching first

          7  for survivors then for human remains, physically

          8  clearing the debris and working to restore critical

          9  services in the hopes of one day rebuilding our

         10  City.  For those many months of dedicated service,

         11  these thousands of uniformed City personnel, and

         12  other rescue and recovery workers, and volunteers

         13  from both the private and public sector were witness

         14  to horrors while working long shifts unprotected

         15  from the toxic dust of the World Trade Center

         16  disaster site.

         17                 Now the medical and health effects of

         18  the World Trade Center disaster have been well-

         19  documented and even discussed earlier today.  At

         20  Mount Sinai in September, we released a paper

         21  detailing findings from 9,442 World Trade Center

         22  responders whom we saw from July 2002 to April 2004.

         23    That study is appended for your review.  We know

         24  that nearly 70 percent of all responders had

         25  symptoms at Ground Zero, and in the month before
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          2  their examination 60 percent of them had a new or

          3  worsened respiratory symptom. There is objective

          4  evidence in the form of breathing test abnormalities

          5  in about one- third of responders including a

          6  breathing test abnormality that is concerning to us

          7  as physicians in that there is a decreased forced

          8  vital capacity, your ability to take a deep breath

          9  of air in was five times greater than would be seen

         10  in non- smoking World Trade Center responders.  This

         11  is associated with a variety of conditions such as

         12  asthma with air trapping, and also interstitial lung

         13  disease, or scarring diseases of the lungs, which

         14  has resulted in known fatalities among World Trade

         15  Center responders.

         16                 There have also been mental health

         17  consequences, post- traumatic stress disorder,

         18  depression, increased rates of alcohol and other

         19  substance abuse.  All of these findings are

         20  consistent with other independent study findings,

         21  and are underscored by the spectrum of diseases

         22  we've seen at the World Trade Center Treatment

         23  Program.  We know that 86 percent of our patients in

         24  treatment have sinus problems, and upper respiratory

         25  problems.  Over 50 percent have lower respiratory
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          2  problems like asthma; 32 percent have

          3  gastrointestinal conditions; 30 percent has

          4  musculoskeletal problems; and nearly 40 percent had

          5  mental health problems.

          6                 Another issue compounding the workers

          7  is that 40 percent of the responders in our

          8  Treatment Program are uninsured, 23 percent are

          9  underinsured, making access to medical services a

         10  major hurdle.  These patients are multi- symptomatic

         11  complicating their health care and case management

         12  for health and social workers who might be

         13  unfamiliar with this combination of exposures and

         14  circumstances.

         15                 The issue of NYPD employees and other

         16  uniformed service members is that depending on their

         17  rank and contract, retirees and others separating

         18  from service lose many, many benefits.  So they move

         19  into this category of being under or uninsured

         20  possibly.  For the many retirees who were

         21  responders, this program at Mount Sinai will

         22  continue to provide coverage after the years of

         23  dedication and service to the City.

         24                 We are a World Trade Center Center of

         25  Excellence, and this model was developed and
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          2  implemented as a result of the unprecedented

          3  response to an unprecedented disaster.  We've been

          4  faced as a City and nation with a terrorist attack

          5  with far reaching physical and mental health

          6  consequences, and this health model that we

          7  developed was envisioned to meet the needs created

          8  by this event.  We began in July 2002 with free,

          9  standardized, comprehensive and confidential

         10  physical and mental examinations for non- FDNY World

         11  Trade Center responders.  Since then, Congress has

         12  helped us establish an ongoing Medical Monitoring

         13  Program, which provides regular follow- up

         14  examinations for healthy and for people who may be

         15  having health effects, and we encourage people to

         16  come in while they're well to make that we keep them

         17  well.

         18                 Since July 2002, we've provided over

         19  20,000 baseline evaluations and nearly 7,500 follow-

         20  up evaluations.  Law enforcement personnel comprise

         21  the largest group of program participants.  In fact,

         22  as of March 28th, just this week, 6,500 New York

         23  City law enforcement and sanitation workers have had

         24  baseline evaluations, and nearly 1,800 have had

         25  follow- up exams.  Our work is done in parallel with
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          2  the FDNY to ensure consistent practices and

          3  services.  In fact, we do use standardized

          4  questionnaires and our programs have been

          5  standardized to provide data that can be shared

          6  across agencies and provide the best information

          7  going forward.

          8                 In November 2006, Congress provided

          9  funding for critically needed medical and mental

         10  health services to supplement the previously funded

         11  just monitoring exam.  This money is time limited,

         12  and as was just eluded to, we are very concerned

         13  that the money will run out later this year.

         14                 The treatment program has provided at

         15  Mount Sinal alone nearly 18,000 medical services

         16  since its inception in January 2003, and services to

         17  nearly 5,000 responders.  Full prescription drug

         18  coverage, a huge medical expense, is available to

         19  all responders without crippling co- pay's.  It has

         20  provided more than 9,900 non- mental health social

         21  work visits to help principally the uninsured or

         22  unemployed.

         23                 Our staff at the World Trade Center

         24  Medical Monitoring and Treatment Program understands

         25  the issues facing responders.  We're able to provide
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          2  a safe, independent, compassionate haven for them to

          3  get medical, mental health and social service care

          4  they need.  Our clinicians who have experience in a

          5  wide array of medical specialties work together to

          6  diagnose responders everyday.  This is what they do,

          7  their lifeblood, this is what they're dedicating the

          8  careers to do, and in the process we have developed

          9  unparalleled expertise with our colleagues at FDNY.

         10                 In our program, the Mount Sinai

         11  Consortium, we have earned patient trust in the

         12  management of World Trade Center related diseases.

         13  Just as importantly, the responders can get state-

         14  of- the- art medical center- based treatment for the

         15  post traumatic stress disorder and other mental

         16  health conditions in an environment without any

         17  stigma from clinicians who know how to treat these

         18  conditions and are also well- versed in the other

         19  World Trade Centers conditions they might be

         20  suffering from which can complicate their care.

         21  Responders can see our social workers who will help

         22  if they get in financial trouble because of missed

         23  work or lack of health insurance.  We know that

         24  there are issues with City workers once they retire

         25  and coverage changes.  Our social work staff can
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          2  help these responders figure out how to protect

          3  their lives.  They've built over year and years of

          4  daily toil and work for this City.

          5                 We also the ability to track diseases

          6  and provide information on new and emerging

          7  diseases.  We have, and continue to coordinate,

          8  outreach activities.  Not everyone in the City, and

          9  every City worker, knows about our program.  We have

         10  400 new enrollees every month, new people eligible

         11  for the program, primarily City workers, and many

         12  haven't heard of the program yet. We've done a lot

         13  of outreach.  There is a lot more work to do, but I

         14  think that all of our outreach personnel who do an

         15  amazing job would be the first to  --  They're met

         16  with people who have never heard of the program

         17  before when they come and meet with different folks.

         18                 We know that people were exposed to

         19  all sorts of chemicals down there.  I call it a

         20  toxic brew.  There were cancer causing agents,

         21  asbestos, benzene, dioxins, PCBs, PAHs  --  an

         22  alphabet soup of toxins.  These can cause

         23  respiratory problems.  We know that there can be

         24  permanent scarring in the lungs, and we're concerned

         25  about cancers and other lung diseases like
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          2  sarcoidosis. The model that we have is capable of

          3  identifying newly emerging disease patterns.  So our

          4  Center of Excellence model, one that we've, the

          5  legislative leaders, occupational medicine and other

          6  specialized medical experts, affected workers and

          7  their representatives have built together over the

          8  past five years has been designed and implemented to

          9  provide the greatest benefits and meet the

         10  demonstrated need of our patient population.  We

         11  ensure the ongoing critical update of clinical

         12  monitoring and treatment services because of the

         13  program's ability to identify disease trends by

         14  pooling information from almost 27,000 examinations

         15  and to continually analyze that information.  We can

         16  ensure an ongoing public health and education

         17  benefit beyond the benefits to responders, health

         18  care providers, government agencies and policy

         19  makers by informing for future disasters.

         20                 Now, as we heard earlier today,

         21  federal funding for World Trade Center related

         22  treatment services is likely to run out at some

         23  point this year.  The medical monitoring arm, we

         24  have about two more years on that, but that isn't

         25  enough to follow people and make sure that we are
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          2  able to identify diseases that may take many years

          3  to develop.  So through our Centers of Excellence we

          4  can prevent death and disability.  We can improve

          5  the lives of many people, and these are people who

          6  gave so much to us.  By providing responders with

          7  expert medical and mental health services, we can

          8  help them stay in their jobs and get back to work.

          9  We can give them back their lives.  We can provide

         10  them with some hope for the future.  We need your

         11  help.  As the Mayor's Panel has suggested, there

         12  should be parody among all City workers so that

         13  release time is provided to responders so they can

         14  participate in monitoring and treatment, not just

         15  for an initial examination, but for the follow up

         16  evaluations as well.

         17                 Five years after the attacks on the

         18  World Trade Center, we know that many are still

         19  suffering.  Respiratory illness, psychological

         20  distress and financial devastation have befallen

         21  many of these brave men and woman.  Also suffering,

         22  of course, are the many World Trade Center

         23  residents, office re occupants and students.  I hope

         24  that my comments today will serve as a reminder of

         25  the widespread impact, the health impact, the mental
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          2  health impact, the financial impact of this disaster

          3  and of the need to continue to build on these

          4  successful Centers of Excellence that we've

          5  developed, and hope to continue, that gives the men

          6  and women of this City the care they deserve.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Dr. Moline, your

          9  time is greatly appreciated.  Thank you very much.

         10  Just a couple of quick questions  --  First, to

         11  commend the work that is done at Mt. Sinai, we

         12  appreciate as well the work done there by the

         13  dedicated staff.  So, again, thank you very much.

         14  Now your title is  --  You are Director of the World

         15  Trade Center Medical Monitoring and Treatment

         16  Center, correct?

         17                 DR. MOLINE: At the Clinical Center at

         18  Mount Sinai. Dr. Robin Herbert is Direct of the Data

         19  and Coordination Center for the Clinical Consortium.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now how would

         21  you interact with the panel, the World Trade Center

         22  Health Panel, or a coordinator that's going to be

         23  hired?  How would you coordinate with them?

         24                 DR. MOLINE: Well of course we'll work

         25  with them in anyway we can.  Our goal is to serve
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          2  the men and women of New York and all those

          3  responders.  We haven't met with them to talk about

          4  how this new liaison would work with us.  I envision

          5  that they would hopefully learn from our staff in

          6  terms of the successful outreach that we've done,

          7  the partnership we've had with labor in identifying

          8  who has been there to bring people in to make sure

          9  people are able to come back in, to make sure they

         10  know that treatment is available, to make sure that

         11  they know that coverage for their medical conditions

         12  is there, to help them navigate through the system.

         13  The Workers' Compensation system is a bear, and

         14  that's saying it politely.  Loss of Duty Injury

         15  System can also be difficult to navigate through.

         16  So we look forward to the opportunity to work with

         17  the liaison to help streamline the care for all City

         18  workers, and everyone who was there, both in the

         19  uniformed and non- uniformed services.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The way I see

         21  it, your relation, your contact, your working

         22  cooperation with that Panel, or with the working

         23  group that was mentioned a critical component as we

         24  try and help our City work force against the

         25  illnesses of the 9/11 attacks. Again, to me, that's
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          2  a critical component.

          3                 DR. MOLINE: Oh, I couldn't agree

          4  more.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So I'm hopeful

          6   --

          7                 DR. MOLINE: I think that we need to

          8  make sure that we work together, and they come to us

          9  and continue to come to us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You heard

         11  previous testimony that said Bellevue has a long

         12  wait period, weeks.  Mt. Sinai, has your staff

         13  increased to compensate for the amount of people

         14  coming in regarding this issue?

         15                 DR. MOLINE: Well our staff has

         16  increased because we've gotten more funding.  We've

         17  actually been able to cut down our wait time for new

         18  patient visits dramatically over the past few

         19  months.  Our regular wait time for a new patient at

         20  the Mount Sinai Center is about six weeks for a new

         21  treatment.  Obviously, if you have an acute medical

         22  condition, you're seen that day, but for a new

         23  appointment it used to be many more months when we

         24  had more limited funding.  We plan to expand our

         25  capacity as the funding becomes stable, and it's our
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          2  hope and prayer that we will continue to get the

          3  resources to provide the treatment.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The financial

          5  aspect of this issue is huge.  It's of great

          6  importance.  So we are working with our federal

          7  legislators as well as the City Council to find as

          8  much money as possible.

          9                 DR. MOLINE: We appreciate that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any other

         11  questions from colleagues?  Nope.  Thank you very

         12  much, Dr. Moline.  I really appreciate your time.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 MR. BUTTON: Our next panel is William

         15  Button from Senator Hillary Clinton's Office.  Is

         16  Mr. Button still here?  Yup.

         17                 Good afternoon.  My name is Case

         18  Button.  I'm from Senator Clinton's Office, and I

         19  have a letter to be read on her behalf.

         20                 I want to first acknowledge and thank

         21  Councilman Addabbo and the other Council Members

         22  involved for partnering and holding these hearings

         23  to address these vital issues that are absolutely

         24  instrumental in getting attention to the needs of so

         25  many thousands of responders, workers, volunteers
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          2  and residents. And all of the people who have

          3  directly affected  --  those who responded, those

          4  who worked, those who lived in the area and those

          5  who volunteered.  I thank you for being here and

          6  being part of this important hearing.

          7                 Just as we are beginning to fully

          8  realize the extent of the damage that was done to

          9  the health of those at Ground Zero, the very program

         10  that is treating their condition faces an uncertain

         11  future.  We cannot allow these critical health care

         12  services to cease operating due to lack of support.

         13  These brave, selfless men and women need our help,

         14  and we must continue to uphold our commitment to

         15  them.  They are living proof of our very real need

         16  to provide for their medical treatment, now and in

         17  the future.

         18                 People are carrying incredible

         19  burdens in the aftermath of 9/11, still sacrificing,

         20  still suffering.  What we have secured so far is

         21  only a down payment in repaying our debt to those

         22  who came to us in our hour of need.

         23                 We are determined to do whatever we

         24  can, both in the short term that the Fire Department

         25  and Mount Sinai Consortium have the funding they
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          2  need to continue the treatment they have started,

          3  and then in the longer term to give us a program

          4  that we can say fully meets the needs of those who

          5  are suffering.

          6                 We are working hard to move

          7  legislation forward and we look forward to working

          8  with the Committee to achieve our goal of making

          9  sure these individuals receive the level of support

         10  they need and deserve.  The federal government also

         11  has a responsibility to make sure there is adequate

         12  funding to meet the growing need, which is why I

         13  have introduced legislation that would provide $1.9

         14  billion dollars in federal funding and will continue

         15  to press for the funding needed to fulfill our

         16  commitment to those who took care of us.  We owe it

         17  to those who bravely and selflessly responded in the

         18  aftermath of 9/11 to stand by them and their

         19  families.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Button,

         21  thank you very much for reading Senator Clinton's

         22  testimony into the record.  Just bring back this

         23  message, that we appreciate her efforts down in

         24  Washington.  We stand right beside her in trying to

         25  get more federal funding.  I have actually
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          2  introduced a resolution supporting her legislation

          3  for the $1.9 billion, which this Committee will vote

          4  on shortly, but again, we appreciate her efforts as

          5  well.  We wish much success because it is critical

          6  to the future and the health of the City workers.

          7  So thank you very much.

          8                 MR. BUTTON: Thank you very much.

          9  I'll pass that along.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  Next

         11  up, representing Congressman Vito Fossella is Bob

         12  Capano.

         13                 MR. CAPANO: My name is Bob Capano.

         14  I'm from the Brooklyn office for Congressman Vito

         15  Fossella, and I'm pleased to present his testimony

         16  before the Committee.

         17                 I first want to thank the Council for

         18  holding this hearing and allowing me to testify

         19  before this panel.  Councilman Addabbo, Councilman

         20  Nelson, Councilman Mark- Viverito, thank you very

         21  much.  This is one of the most pressing issues

         22  facing our City's 9/11 heroes, and I applaud your

         23  commitment to the topic.  Certainly I'm pleased to

         24  give this update on recent actions in Washington

         25  D.C.
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          2                 Working together Congresswoman

          3  Maloney and the New York area Congressional

          4  delegation, we have achieved much in advancing the

          5  needs of sick 9/11 first responders and workers.

          6  Last month represented a notable anniversary in our

          7  fight.  A little over one year ago, we secured the

          8  appointment of Dr. John Howard as 9/11 Health

          9  Coordinator.  Since taking the job, Dr. Howard has

         10  helped speed the development of clinical guidelines

         11  on 9/11 illnesses.  He helped ensure expedited

         12  release of the first ever federal funds to treat

         13  responders and workers suffering from 9/11

         14  sicknesses.  I applaud and thank him for his work

         15  and look forward to continue working with him.

         16                 Much has been accomplished for the

         17  health of our 9/11 heroes, but there is much to be

         18  done.  The recent report of Mayor Bloomberg's World

         19  Trade Center Health Panel emphasizes this reality.

         20  It notes over 681,000 people were exposed to Ground

         21  Zero toxins.  About 410,000 of these people were

         22  heavily exposed, 69 percent of responders have new

         23  or worsened respiratory conditions, and 40 percent

         24  have either no insurance or inadequate coverage. The

         25  devastation of this crisis is seen regularly on the
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          2  pages of our newspapers.  The fact are clear.

          3  Thousands are suffering, and in some cases, dying

          4  from their work at Ground Zero.

          5                 James Zadroga was one of the first

          6  publicized victims.  His autopsy concluded his death

          7  from respiratory disease was explicitly linked to

          8  his efforts on 9/11.  Other deaths followed and more

          9  cases of long- term illnesses were revealed.  Just

         10  last month, the Staten Island Advance chronicled the

         11  story of three living victims.  New York

         12  firefighter, Robert Wallen dug through the pile for

         13  a week after 9/11 wearing only a paper mask to

         14  shield him from the cloud of toxic dust.  A year

         15  later, he started becoming overwhelmed with fatigue.

         16    By 2003, he was diagnosed with a disease sometimes

         17  classified as an early form of cancer characterized

         18  by ineffective production of blood cells.  It took a

         19  bone marrow transplant to clear him of the disease,

         20  but he still suffers fatigue and takes over 26 pills

         21  a day.

         22                 Once a weight lifter, 52- year old

         23  NYPD detective, Gary White also answered the call.

         24  He worked the pile on 9/11, and six months

         25  afterwards.  His problems started with a rash, then
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          2  a cough, then a severe nasal drip which prevented

          3  him from sleeping. Last year, a doctor discovered he

          4  had stopped breathing between 35 and 40 times each

          5  hour.  This condition eventually led to a stroke and

          6  permanent brain damage.

          7                 Forty- three year old, Ed Wallace

          8  joined the recovery efforts at Ground Zero following

          9  his brother's death from brain cancer only a few

         10  days after 9/11.  As the Staten Island Advance

         11  noted, Wallace spent five months shuttling between

         12  Ground Zero, Fresh Kills and the morgue as a member

         13  of the Crime Scene Unit. Now he can no longer open

         14  jars because his joints constantly ache. Patches of

         15  burning red bumps flare up across his body, tumors

         16  swell beneath his skin and acid swims in his mouth.

         17  His lung ailments required surgery.  Doctors had to

         18  cut out three sections of his lungs.  His disease

         19  was sarcoidosis, a condition prevalent in 9/11

         20  workers.

         21                 These were all young men who are

         22  seeing several years shaved off their lives because

         23  of their sacrifice, and there are thousands who

         24  share their stories.  It is our nation's duty to

         25  provide these heroes with the care they need so they
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          2  can have some hope to once again lead normal lives.

          3                 In only the last two years, we have

          4  reached many milestones on 9/11 health.  We reversed

          5  the recision of $125 million dollars and provided

          6  $75 million dollars of that money for the first ever

          7  treatment of 9/11 illnesses.  We saw the appointment

          8  of Dr. Howard and the creation of a World Trade

          9  Center Health Task Force at the Federal Department

         10  of Health and Human Services, headed by Dr.

         11  Agwunobi.  The efforts of these individuals and the

         12  continued vigilance of the New York area

         13  Congressional delegation and certainly this the area

         14  that goes beyond politics and party, and if we can

         15  agree on one thing, we can agree to work together on

         16  a bi- partisan effort on this issue.  The efforts of

         17  these individuals and the continued vigilance of the

         18  entire Congressional delegation most recently lead

         19  to the inclusion of a $25 million dollar down

         20  payment in the President's Budget for 9/11 health

         21  treatment.

         22                 I was again applaud the President for

         23  this funding and for the Administration's commitment

         24  that this is indeed only a first step and that more

         25  money is on the way.
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          2                 Last month, Congress held a hearing

          3  about the results of the Mayor's 9/11 Health Panel

          4  Study and received an update on the workings of

          5  current programs.  We also heard from Dr. Agwunobi

          6  and Dr. Howard on their efforts to access the long-

          7  term cost of 9/11 health crisis.  It was another

          8  stark reminder of the challenges ahead, but also

          9  served as a guide in our efforts to continue to

         10  fighting for the needs of September 11th's forgotten

         11  heroes.  We will continue our fight in Washington.

         12                 Congresswoman Maloney and I recently

         13  introduced legislation in the House, as Senator

         14  Clinton did in the Senate, authorizing $1.9 billion

         15  dollars to fund and expand existing 9/11 health

         16  monitoring and treatment programs.  The bill also

         17  directs the national Institute of Health to conduct

         18  diagnostic and treatment research form 9/11

         19  associated health conditions which I think goes back

         20  to Councilman Gerson's points earlier.  In addition,

         21  it reopens the September 11th Victims Compensation

         22  Fund to provide for individuals who have become sick

         23  from 9/11 and compensation for their losses, and

         24  that includes everyone, area school children and

         25  area residents, not just uniformed personnel.

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 Finally, I want to once again thank

          3  the Council for holding this hearing, thank Deputy

          4  Mayors Skyler and Gibbs for their work on the 9/11

          5  Health Report, and of course look forward to working

          6  with the City Council and the entire Congressional

          7  delegation to ensure that our nation's heroes get

          8  the care that they need and that they certainly

          9  deserve.  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Capano,

         11  thank you very much for reading Congressman

         12  Fossella's statement into the record, and again, we

         13  do appreciate all the work he has done again for us

         14  down in Washington regarding federal funding which,

         15  once again, is so critical to this issue.  So we

         16  appreciate his efforts.  Any questions from

         17  colleagues?  Thank you very much.

         18                 MR. CAPANO: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well we have a

         20  question. Council Member Mark- Viverito.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: In

         22  terms of the bill, where is it at right now and

         23  what's the projected  --

         24                 MR. CAPANO: It was  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: First
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          2  of all, let me ask you a question.  Was a bill

          3  similar to this at all introduced in the prior

          4  Congress?

          5                 MR. CAPANO: No, not with this

          6  language, and this current bill is currently at the

          7  Energy and Commerce Committee. Certainly,

          8  Congressman Fossella has spoken to the Republican

          9  Leader, Congressman Barton, and Congresswoman

         10  Maloney certainly has a close relationship with the

         11  Committee Chair, Congressman Dingle. So we're

         12  hopeful that it will see some action this Congress,

         13  but as of right now no date has been set for

         14  legislation for the legislation at that committee

         15  level.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         17  So no date in other words.

         18                 MR. CAPANO: Right, but certainly both

         19  Congresswoman Maloney has spoken with the Chair and

         20  has a good relationship with him.  So we're very

         21  hopeful we'll at least see some action out of this

         22  Congress.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO: Okay.

         24  Thank you.

         25                 MR. CAPANO: We'll certainly keep you
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          2  updated on that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please do.

          4  Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. CAPANO: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.  Our

          7  next panel, a panel of three, Lieutenant Edward

          8  Boles, UFOA, Rob Zinc, PBA, and Tom Eppinger,

          9  Uniformed EMS Officers.  Gentlemen, thank you very

         10  much for your time and testimony today.  Just please

         11  state your name and give your testimony please.

         12                 MR. TRAMONTANO: Thank you, Council

         13  Member Addabbo. I'd like to apologize for Pat Lynch.

         14    He's been to a lot of line of duty injuries at

         15  hospitals around the City because we've had a lot of

         16  officers injured.  So I'm going to read his

         17  testimony.

         18                 I want to thank Chairman Addabbo and

         19  this Committee for holding a second hearing on such

         20  an important issue and taking the time to consider

         21  my statement.

         22                 When I last appeared before this

         23  Committee, I focused on our police officers heroic

         24  response on September 11th, which remarkably was

         25  being questioned by certain people in the City.  I
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          2  addressed what the PBA thought was the City's and

          3  the NYPD's inadequate response to the health care

          4  crisis emerging from exposure at the World Trade

          5  Center.  I expressed concerns about the

          6  inappropriate involvement of attorneys in what was

          7  first and foremost a public health issue and

          8  expressed concerns about programs that were funded

          9  to monitor the health of responders.

         10                 Since that time, there have been many

         11  developments in the areas specifically addressed in

         12  my testimony before this Committee in its last

         13  hearing, and we at the PBA are thankful for the

         14  Chair and this Committee for shedding light on and

         15  raising important questions about the health issues

         16  affecting police officers and others who sacrificed

         17  for this City and country on that terrible day.  I

         18  believe that this Committee's work is responsible in

         19  part for this Administration's change in this

         20  position, including its undertaking of the

         21  investigation that led to the report and

         22  recommendations to Mayor Bloomberg.

         23                 While we believe that the report to

         24  the Mayor is a beginning and acknowledge Deputy

         25  Mayors Ed Skyler and Linda Gibbs and others for
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          2  their efforts, we believe that the health problems

          3  being experienced by first responders and others

          4  merit a greater sense of urgency.  While we await

          5  federal funding, which we believe is appropriate and

          6  necessary, we believe the City should take upon

          7  itself to work to ensure the prompt diagnosis and

          8  provision of effective medical treatment for all

          9  those suffering from illnesses relation to exposures

         10  at Ground Zero.  We also believe that information

         11  and data that is currently in the possession of the

         12  various agencies presently addressing health issues

         13  related to 9/11 be disseminated quickly.

         14                 As to certain specific

         15  recommendations and findings in the report, we make

         16  the following observations, first, we were surprised

         17  to read that the NYPD has purported to play some

         18  role in addressing the health effects on 9/11 on our

         19  members.  The Department has certainly not in

         20  practice of implementing this systemic program of

         21  monitoring, tracking or evaluation of police

         22  officers.  To date, our members have reported little

         23  or no cooperation from the Department when reporting

         24  Line of Duty illnesses related to 9/11.  For

         25  example, the Department has denied the connection of
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          2  sarcoidosis and interstitial, which is a lung

          3  ailment recognized by the Fire Department as having

          4  increased after 9/11, to the World Trade Center

          5  exposures.  Our members advise us that even reports

          6  of respiratory ailments related to the World Trade

          7  Center are denied by the Department as having not

          8  been related to the World Trade Center.

          9                 If you read the report, you get the

         10  sense that science somehow supports the NYPD's

         11  conclusions on these issues. Recognizing that we as

         12  a people could not wait until scientific findings

         13  support the definitive conclusion that a responder's

         14  health ailments were caused by toxic exposures at

         15  the World Trade Center, the New York State

         16  legislature has created a presumption in the pension

         17  laws that certain ailments are related to those

         18  exposures.  Defying the public policy of this State

         19  the NYPD is requiring employees to prove

         20  scientifically, or based on available medical

         21  research, that their illnesses were caused by

         22  exposures at Ground Zero.

         23                 How does an employee go about meeting

         24  that standard? We are almost six years out from 9/11

         25  and there is little in terms of scientific studies
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          2  in the public domain, and even those few that are

          3  out there are apparently insufficient for the

          4  doctors at the NYPD.  That conduct by the NYPD is

          5  reprehensible and raises in our minds serious

          6  concerns about whether they should be entrusted with

          7  any role in monitoring or treating responders for

          8  World Trade Center health issues.

          9                 Now, we understand again after

         10  hearing through third parties that the Department is

         11  seeking funding for some type of program to address

         12  health issues relating to the World Trade Center

         13  exposures, year after the Fire Department sought and

         14  obtained such funding.  Without having any details

         15  of what the Department plans, and based on our

         16  police officers past experience with the NYPD's

         17  Medical Division, we cannot support such a program.

         18  While we continue to have issues with the existing

         19  monitoring programs, we consider them a better

         20  alternative than an NYPD Medical Division

         21  coordinated program.

         22                 Second, we agree with the findings

         23  that the screening of City employees be conducted on

         24  work time.  However, seemingly in contrast with the

         25  views of the Mayor's Panel, we believe that the
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          2  employer is obligated to release the employee from

          3  work for all medical examinations and treatments

          4  related to World Trade Center illnesses.  We

          5  understand that that's the protocol in the Fire

          6  Department, and we expect and are entitled to the

          7  very same treatment for New York City police

          8  officers.

          9                 Next, Union Welfare Funds and

         10  individual members continue to be strained by the

         11  costs incurred to provide police officers medical

         12  treatment and prescription drugs to treat illnesses

         13  resulting from World Trade Center exposures.  That

         14  expense is by law the obligation of the City, not

         15  the individual union's welfare fund.  The City has

         16  been dragging its heels in addressing that concern.

         17  Unlike employees of the Fire Department, who have

         18  had their medical treatments paid for, police

         19  officers have had to shoulder certain medical costs.

         20    Prescription drugs are being paid for primarily,

         21  if not exclusively, through the union's welfare

         22  funds.  The City has to pick up this responsibility

         23  immediately and reimburse the welfare funds for all

         24  costs incurred in providing medications for those

         25  made ill by 9/11 exposures.
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          2                 I ask that the Committee accept into

          3  the record a letter received from one of our retired

          4  officers who details that he is expending a third of

          5  his monthly income on medical expenses related to

          6  9/11 ailments.  This is but one example of the

          7  challenges confronting police officers who served at

          8  Ground Zero.

          9                 Finally, not enough data is being

         10  made public by those agencies that are responsible

         11  for monitoring those exposed to the toxins at the

         12  World Trade Center and other locations.  Police

         13  officers and other have cooperated in these programs

         14  and studies, and have received very little back in

         15  terms of information despite millions of dollars in

         16  expenditures of public money.

         17                 In addition, these programs have

         18  confirmed that our police officers and others are

         19  suffering from respiratory ailments, GERD and

         20  various forms of mental illnesses, but have failed

         21  to address the very serious medical conditions that

         22  police officers and other believe they are suffering

         23  from exposures.  Cancers, organ failures,

         24  sarcoidosis and tumors are some of the illnesses

         25  that are not being tracked effectively in our view.
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          2                 Why aren't the more serious illnesses

          3  being thoroughly studied and reported upon?  This

          4  type of decision making, whether cloaked in the

          5  words of science or medicine or not, serves to

          6  undermine the public trust and confidence in the

          7  monitoring programs.  A failure to study the most

          8  serious health claims is inexcusable.

          9                 The persons running those programs,

         10  which are funded in large measure by taxpayers, need

         11  to understand their obligations and to whom they are

         12  owing, namely those who responded and answered the

         13  call on September 11th and the public more

         14  generally.  Those programs need to be patient-

         15  oriented and completely transparent to the public

         16  and our responders.  The employment of public

         17  relations firms and the conduct of meetings and

         18  decision- making in less than an open public way is

         19  simply not acceptable.  We urge that changes be made

         20  in the way these programs are now doing business.

         21                 In conclusion, it has been said that

         22  the first step in addressing a problem is

         23  acknowledging that one exists.  We believe that the

         24  Mayor's report takes that first step.  We now have

         25  to demonstrate through further actions that we as a
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          2  government and a people are committed to those who

          3  gave to all of us through their actions on September

          4  11th.

          5                 I again would like to thank the Chair

          6  and the Committee for giving me attention.

          7                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon.  My name

          8  is Lieutenant Eddie Boles, and I'm here on behalf of

          9  the UFOA President, Peter Gorman.  The Uniformed

         10  Fire Officers Association represents over 2,500

         11  lieutenants, captains, battalion chiefs, deputy

         12  chiefs, supervising fire marshals and medical

         13  officers in the FDNY.  I wish to first thank Council

         14  Member Joe Addabbo and his fellow Committee Members

         15  for having a hearing on this extremely important

         16  issue.  I would like to apologize for not submitting

         17  a written testimony, but I shall submit a formal

         18  written testimony at a later time.

         19                 Our union has been proactive in

         20  support of seeking legislature whether it be from

         21  the City, State or federal government to provide the

         22  necessary funding for the monitoring, diagnosis and

         23  treatment of our members who responded and worked at

         24  the World Trade Center site in the days and months

         25  after 9/11.
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          2                 As you may be aware, more than 11,500

          3  firefighters participated at the work at Ground Zero

          4  in an extremely toxic environment.  To date, more

          5  than 3,000 FDNY members have sought respiratory

          6  treatment, and more than 700 have developed

          7  permanent respiratory disability, which has led to

          8  premature retirement.

          9                 Additionally, we have countless

         10  members battling various illnesses including cancer,

         11  gastrointestinal, esophageal and sinus illnesses to

         12  date, both among our active and retired members.

         13  Beside our members battling physical illnesses,

         14  nearly 14,000 FDNY members have sought counseling

         15  services through the Fire Department Counseling Unit

         16  with the FDNY Counseling Unit seeing an average of

         17  260 cases per month compared to an average of 50

         18  cases per month before 9/11.  Dr. Kelly and Dr.

         19  Prezant, the Chief Medical Officers in the FDNY,

         20  have done a valiant job in overseeing the health

         21  care of our members since 9/11.  Both doctors have

         22  worked tirelessly in addressing the complexity of

         23  delivering the health care to our members, as well

         24  as monitoring and documenting the effects from their

         25  exposure.  They lead one of the three Centers of
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          2  Excellence for World Trade Center, but their efforts

          3  need to be supplemented with funding to keep it

          4  operating.

          5                 One very positive program that was

          6  implemented with a $25 million dollar federal grant

          7  was providing Prescription Drug Program for our

          8  members who are suffering from a World Trade Center

          9  related illness.  Before this program, the cost of

         10  dealing with the World Trade Center illness was

         11  being shouldered by the member and our union.  Co-

         12  payments from the health carriers and the

         13  prescription drug cost were being paid directly by

         14  the members and the union.  The costs are in the

         15  thousands of dollars.  So our members not only have

         16  to endure the stress of dealing with their illness,

         17  but the member and their families have to deal with

         18  the financial strains of the cost of their illness,

         19  which was earlier raised by Council Member McMahon.

         20                 To provide an intimate insight into

         21  this problem, let me provide two anecdotes from fire

         22  officers who suffer from World Trade Center related

         23  illnesses.  Lieutenant Marty Fullum (phonetic) has

         24  been battling a debilitating autoimmune disease

         25  called polymyositis since November 2005.  This
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          2  disease has severely taken a toll on Marty's lungs

          3  which has caused his lung capacity to average about

          4  40 percent of its capacity.  Currently, Marty's

          5  diagnosis is so dire that he is in need of a lung

          6  donor transplant. Without a lung transplant, Marty's

          7  chances of living past two years is relatively slim.

          8    Up until his illness, Marty led a very active life

          9  often engaged in many outdoor activities with his

         10  wife, Trish, and their three daughters.  Marty spent

         11  over 20 years with the Fire Department, and he has

         12  dedicated his life to assisting those New York City

         13  citizens who summon the help of the Fire Department.

         14    On 9/11, Marty Fullum did not hesitate to respond,

         15  and he was part of the rescue team that laid Fire

         16  Department Chaplain, Father Michael Judge on the

         17  alter of Saint Peter's Church near the site.  After

         18  that heroic act, Marty returned to the site

         19  participating in the rescue activities of that day

         20  and toiled at the site in the recovery process

         21  during the many weeks that followed.  Marty's

         22  illness has taken a huge toll on himself and his

         23  family.  He valiantly continues to battle his

         24  illness, but an additional strain is dealing with

         25  the mounting medical bills.  As the medical bills
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          2  get higher and higher, now over $70,000 dollars, the

          3  anxiety of addressing those bills is putting a huge

          4  burden on he and his wife. The 9/11 heroes Health

          5  Improvement Act, which was talked about earlier,

          6  would help to relieve this additional strain on

          7  Marty and his family and allow him to focus his

          8  attention on treating his illness and enjoying what

          9  little time he may have left with his family.

         10                 Lieutenant Rinaldo Rueban Natale

         11  (phonetic) was first diagnosed with pancreatic

         12  cancer in September of 2005 after suffering from

         13  gastrointestinal- like symptoms for several months.

         14  Rinaldo lived an active, healthy life up to the

         15  point of his diagnosis often playing basketball with

         16  his 12- year old son, Reuban.  After battling cancer

         17  for only a few months, Rinaldo succumb to pancreatic

         18  cancer in February of 2006.  Although his spirits

         19  remained relatively high throughout his illness, his

         20  biggest concern were the financial affects of his

         21  illness on his family.  Rinaldo's bills escalated to

         22  over $60,000 dollars, and his wife, Sandy, is still

         23  buried in a mountain of medical bills and notices

         24  from collection agencies even though Rinaldo died

         25  over a year ago.  His family continues to deal with
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          2  the emotional loss, but the frustration of dealing

          3  with the medical bill quagmire has left an even

          4  greater toll.  Lieutenant Natale faithfully

          5  committed his life to serving the citizens of New

          6  York City for over 20 years, and played an integral

          7  role in coordinating communications for the Fire

          8  Department on the days after the World Trade Center

          9  disaster.  His efforts with the FDNY Communications

         10  Unit at Ground Zero helped to expedite the overall

         11  operations of the FDNY units. Rinaldo toiled at the

         12  site from 9/11, and worked countless hours for four

         13  months after the date.  It is so unfortunate that

         14  his family's grieving process is continually

         15  disrupted by encountering Rinaldo's medical bills.

         16  That's why, again, the Health Improvement Act would

         17  play a monumental roll in relieving the additional

         18  strain on this particular family and many of our

         19  members and their family.

         20                 The complexity of dealing with the

         21  health issues from World Trade Center is monumental,

         22  and I compliment this Committee's efforts in

         23  addressing the many issues, but what we need is the

         24  entire City government joining as one and

         25  collectively lobbying with all City agencies and
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          2  unions and our members the federal government to do

          3  the right thing and pass the 9/11 Health Improvement

          4  Act, which would provide nearly $2 million dollars

          5  to monitor, diagnose and treat all New Yorkers

          6  affected by 9/11.

          7                 I've just given you two anecdotes of

          8  many of my members that I'm dealing with on a

          9  constant daily basis that are dealing with these

         10  same problems, not only with the physical health,

         11  but also with the strains of the financial burden of

         12  their illness.  The citizens of New York City

         13  provided the first line of defense for the entire

         14  country when our country was attacked on 9/11.  Now

         15  the entire country must step up and assist our City

         16  with the necessary funding to help our citizens.

         17                 Again, I appreciate this Committee's

         18  due diligence in this issue, and your continued

         19  efforts in helping us, and I will take any questions

         20  at the end.

         21                 MR. EPPINGER: My name is Thomas

         22  Eppinger, and I'm the President of the Uniformed EMS

         23  Officers Union.  I'm joined today by Marianne

         24  Pizzitola, the Disability, Pension and Benefits

         25  Coordinator for the union.  Our organization

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  represents over 400 lieutenants and captains that

          3  are the frontline leadership from FDNY EMS.  Our

          4  members responded to the World Trade Center attack

          5  on 9/11 and did not leave until the last piece of

          6  steel was removed.  Five years later, my members are

          7  paying for their unselfish dedication and

          8  commitment.  Many of them are very ill and feel like

          9  they have been forgotten.

         10                 First, I want to thank again the

         11  leadership of Council Member Addabbo, Speaker Quinn

         12  and the Members of the City Council and the Civil

         13  Service and Labor Committee for holding this second

         14  hearing today.  This is a topic still is (sic) of

         15  vital importance to the members of my union.

         16                 Council Members, my members still

         17  continue to suffer from the bureaucracy from every

         18  level of government beginning with the Fire

         19  Department, the New York City Law Department and

         20  ending at the NYC Employees Retirement System.  My

         21  members must navigate three agencies to secure the

         22  benefits they so rightfully earned by responding to

         23  the 9/11 tragedy.

         24                 I though the most productive use of

         25  my testimony today would concentrate on the
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          2  following items, the Mayor's Task Force of WTC

          3  Health Issues.

          4                 After meeting with the Mayor's Task

          5  Force and presenting them with the issues that we

          6  testified about previously at this Committee, we

          7  were hoping for some solutions.  In the Mayor's

          8  report, Addressing the Health Impact of 9/11- Report

          9  Recommendations to Mayor Michael Bloomberg, the Task

         10  Force Panel describes the issues concerning Workers'

         11  Compensation and pension as unfortunate tensions

         12  that will continue due to the following reasons.

         13  Number one, the NYC Department of Health and Mental

         14  Hygiene WTC Guidelines are contradictory to the

         15  pension bills that provide for presumptions of WTC

         16  causation and blames them for the tension by station

         17  this tension is an unfortunate by- product of the

         18  Presumption Bill, though generous to beneficiaries,

         19  this makes categorical determinations that cannot

         20  yet, and many not ever, be attributable to 9/11.

         21  And two, the City worker is obligated to prove that

         22  they are ill due the World Trade Center Disaster and

         23  since the City has no proof of causation, they state

         24  in this report that they are obligated to challenge

         25  a high number of these Compensation claims.
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          2                 We find that the NYC Department of

          3  Health and Mental Hygiene WTC Guidelines are so

          4  vague that they serve to limit pension and Workers'

          5  Comp cases being from awarded benefits they need and

          6  further prevents medical practitioners access from a

          7  true medical guideline to work from when evaluation

          8  those exposed to 9/11 toxic debris.  Our responders

          9  and volunteers are receiving diagnoses that fall

         10  well beyond the listings in this document.  The

         11  limited scope of these guidelines bind medical

         12  practitioners from identifying and treating 9/11

         13  health- related illnesses, and according to this

         14  report, is preventing pensions from being granted.

         15  The DOH guidelines need to be updated every six

         16  months, or at least once a year, to include

         17  increasing rates of diagnoses with the cluster of

         18  illnesses at least identified by the WTC Treatment

         19  Centers as possible 9/11 medical- related illnesses

         20  to provide doctors with a full and accurate picture

         21  of the evolving framework.

         22                 The guidelines simply mention GERD,

         23  depression, anxiety and PTSD, upper airway cough

         24  syndrome, formerly termed post nasal drip, asthma,

         25  reactive airway disease, otherwise known as RADS and
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          2  chronic cough.  Yet our members and thousands in

          3  other treatment centers are being diagnosed with

          4  many more life threatening illnesses.

          5                 And lastly, is the issue of WTC

          6  Treatment Center communication.  Labor fought hard

          7  for a 9/11 health czar to help advocate for our

          8  needs and provide us with information.  Dr. Howard

          9  needs to be funded and be enabled to collect

         10  information from all the WTC centers as an

         11  information clearing house of sorts to provide those

         12  effected with what the science from these centers is

         13  identifying.  We should know that the centers have

         14  identified a high incidence of an illness or symptom

         15  and those should be updated in the NYC DOH and MH

         16  WTC Guidelines as well.  We have members that are in

         17  different treatment centers where their treatment or

         18  diagnostic testing is not consistent and we would

         19  like to see this change so our members are better

         20  informed.

         21                 On behalf of the members of the

         22  Uniformed EMS Officers Union, I cannot express my

         23  gratitude to you Councilman Addabbo, this Committee

         24  and City Council for your commitment to these issue.

         25    Marianne and myself are available to answer any
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          2  questions, but if you don't mind, I just want to say

          3  a few things just regarding what the City said.

          4  They don't have an idea of how many people  --  and

          5  I apologize, gentlemen  --  how many people are

          6  registered for the State Workers' Comp  --  What

          7  form number is that, Marianne?  Thank you.  It's a

          8  lot of forms.  We do, and I can tell you why.

          9  Because Marianne has foiled City government, and we

         10  have found that of 400 plus members, as of March

         11  8th, we only have 59 people that are registered.  As

         12  a result, what our union has done is we have members

         13  that are notaries.  We registered 43 members at a

         14  general membership meeting.  I now have to send

         15  these notaries, who are my members who are doing

         16  this at no cost to me, to travel throughout the City

         17  to get people to sign up.  We try to inform our

         18  members.  We've asked the Fire Department, our

         19  Bureau of Health Services, where we go every year,

         20  to start working on this. I am trying to work with

         21  Dr. Prezant to set this up.  Once again, Councilman

         22  Addabbo, and Councilman McMahon has now noted,

         23  there's a difference in treatment between the

         24  groups.  It's clear.

         25                 Litigation, we traveled down to
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          2  Washington D.C. to hear Mayor Bloomberg testify.  It

          3  seems clear to us that there is a problem with

          4  litigation within the City, and what we interpret is

          5  are they not taking care of us because of lawsuits?

          6  If that's the case, what's going on here?

          7                 The last thing is in the Mayor's

          8  Report, they state they don't know how many Workers'

          9  Comp cases have been denied. Page number 75,

         10  footnote 151, the City has controverted 35 percent

         11  total WTC- related claims and 17 percent of WTC

         12  claims filed by FDNY members, almost all EMS, though

         13  a small share are the FDNY civilian workers.  As a

         14  general matter, the City only controverts five

         15  percent of all total Worker Compensation claims.

         16  They said they didn't know it.  It's in their

         17  report.  It's pretty clear to us.

         18                 I have to say how proud I am that I

         19  sit next to a police officer and firefighter,

         20  eighteen years in New York City. I'm a City

         21  resident, but I'm disgusted that we have to come

         22  here and beg for help, and if it's not for your

         23  leadership, Councilman Addabbo, this report would

         24  have never came out.  That's the truth, and I have

         25  to say thank you.  I'm ready for any of your
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          2  questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well first,

          4  thank you very much, and first off, let met thank

          5  all three of you and your members for what on a day-

          6  to- day basis you do for our City, and obviously on

          7  the heels of 9/11 the efforts you have made there.

          8  So thank you very much, again, for your commitment

          9  and dedication.

         10                 You heard the City's testimony

         11  earlier.  You heard the panel's testimony.  Mr.

         12  Eppinger, you've eluded to it a little bit, but I

         13  want to get all three of you to weigh in on it.

         14  What do you think?  Do you think we're moving in the

         15  right direction?  Is there a lot more work to do?

         16  What suggestions do you have?  I think we have

         17  yours, Tom.  I think we have yours.  But please, if

         18  anybody could weigh in on that panel because this is

         19  a work in progress, and time is not on our side.

         20  Whichever day that passes by, somebody else is

         21  getting increasingly more sick.  So please.

         22                 MR. TRAMONTANO: I've traveled down to

         23  Washington the last couple of months in regards to

         24  help to lobby for the funding to help our members in

         25  regards to dealing with their illnesses, and I
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          2  raised it earlier, and Council Member McMahon was

          3  trying to raise the issue also that right now we did

          4  a really good job.  I believe unions did

          5  collectively together, just the unions, in regards

          6  to getting really significant World Trade Center

          7  legislature, which, unfortunately, the City was

          8  fighting us on.  Although that is important for our

          9  families in regards to pension purposes, it's only

         10  for that pension purposes, and the same thing goes

         11  for the Workers' Comp.

         12                 Right now, our members  --  and this

         13  is really important.  Our members are dealing with

         14  illnesses that they are paying for that whatever is

         15  not paid by their health care carrier, the co-

         16  payments, going to specialists that are not on the

         17  network whether it's  --  whatever health carrier

         18  they have.  The prescription drug costs are being

         19  paid by the member and by the unions welfare fund,

         20  and they're squeezing our welfare fund and they're

         21  squeezing our members for dollars that they

         22  shouldn't really have to pay, and I'm not just

         23  talking about the uniformed -  I can only imagine

         24  the civilians that are dealing with the same issues,

         25  and civilians that don't have medical coverage.
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          2  This bill is in dire need, and everyone has to go

          3  down there and lobby for it, but the City has to

          4  step up, the State has to step up and take care of

          5  these bills right now.  And they're not, and that is

          6  an absolute disgrace that our members have to worry

          7  about whether they should get this drug or not

          8  because of its expense.

          9                 MR. BOLES: I basically agree with

         10  what he is saying. We have over 35,000 members that

         11  were down at the site.  I mean there were thousands

         12  of New York City Police Officers there, and the cost

         13  could be astronomical for us on the World Trade

         14  Center illnesses.  We also believe that there should

         15  be an equal program that benefits all emergency

         16  workers together in a unified program. I think that

         17  is very important.

         18                 MR. EPPINGER: I'll stay with my

         19  previous statements. You know I just have to

         20  reiterate that there is no reason why union

         21  officials have to go and beg.  It's ludicrous.  They

         22  know what took place.  The report was hesitant to be

         23  put out.  It was because it was questioned at a City

         24  Council hearing in September of last year, and there

         25  is absolutely no reason for this.  The City has the
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          2  ability to take, and what I tell my members, the

          3  Mayor has to take his foot off the brake.  It's

          4  killing my members.  We have people that are going

          5  without paychecks.  They're going without benefits.

          6  I'm not in a the predicament of a welfare fund.

          7  It's covered by my parent union, but in discussions

          8  with them, they are really concerned about the

          9  future of how we're going take care of our people

         10  because it's going to get very ugly, very quick.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: To that point

         12  gentlemen again, if you ever think that there's a

         13  way that you are going to make a suggestion of how

         14  the Mayor can take his foot of the brake, please let

         15  us know detail.  Mr. Eppinger, in September '06,

         16  your testimony --  I actually compliment on it  --

         17  you stated the issue and then gave a suggestion on

         18  how to address the issue.  Subsequent to this

         19  hearing, any suggestions you have on what the

         20  Administration could do, in your opinion, please

         21  forward it.  I would be more than happy to consider

         22  and work with the Administration on it.  So again,

         23  please forward any suggestions you have on how we go

         24  forward, and to Mr. Eppinger's point, possibly

         25  having the Mayor take his foot off the brake.
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          2  Council Member Monserrate.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair.  I guess my concerns and my suspicions

          5  were somewhat confirmed by the testimony presented

          6  here today.  Before I ask representatives of the

          7  Administration regarding the type of outreach that

          8  has or hasn't been done, particularly you just

          9  testified to 60 somewhat members, is that of your

         10  union?

         11                 MR. EPPINGER: Yes, out of 400 people

         12   --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And who

         14  probably are eligible or should register?

         15                 MR. EPPINGER: 99.9 percent of people

         16  are eligible. The people that were not eligible were

         17  those that were female members that were pregnant,

         18  people that are out on medical leave.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Right.

         20                 MR. EPPINGER: We foiled the City

         21  government, found that we had approximately 59

         22  people.  So we can only assume since we publish, and

         23  so does the Fire Department and the City, you must

         24  do both forms that we only have 59 people as of

         25  March 8th, but we can report that we've added 43
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          2  more through our efforts of getting out to our

          3  membership as an individual union, to bring the

          4  notary to them, bring the forms, the envelopes, the

          5  stamps and get them to do this.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: But then

          7  again, does the union incurring whatever costs are

          8  associated with this effort with Mr. Chairman which

          9  I believe clearly should be directed by the City.

         10  This is why I questioned whether they had actually

         11  mailed this notification to each eligible member.

         12  I'm also concerned about the lack of uniformity in

         13  establishing of a database of affected members.  So

         14  having said that, I'm sure that the Administration

         15  now will come back to us with maybe some other

         16  suggestions or renew their efforts towards not only

         17  identifying, but informing all the members of the

         18  City work force that could be impacted.

         19                 My next question is with respect to

         20  another part of your testimony which is the

         21  classifications of Line of Duty illness or injury

         22  regarding our September 11 workers.  I know that the

         23  Department's surgeon is on our premise here.  I

         24  don't know if the Department is testifying.  They're

         25  not testifying.  I would like to know from your
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          2  experiences, based on your members and your specific

          3  agencies, how difficult it has been for members who

          4  have been affected by September 11th illness,

          5  whatever that might be, and having their condition

          6  classified as Line of Duty.

          7                 MR. BOLES: Line of Duty illness  --

          8  this is where it gets a little tricky because a

          9  person may have a presumptive illness related to

         10  World Trade Center it doesn't necessarily mean that

         11  it's classified as a Line of Duty illness.  For

         12  example,  if I were in a fire and I tore my knee up

         13  and I needed surgery on my knee, the medical costs

         14  that were incurred by that particular injury would

         15  be fully covered by the Fire Department.  If a

         16  member of mine comes down with pancreatic cancer

         17  like Lieutenant Natale that was not classified as a

         18  Line of Duty illness even though it was classified

         19  as a World Trade Center related illness.  So the

         20  costs that were incurred because of that particular

         21  illness was then picked up by the health care

         22  carrier, the member and the union in regards to

         23  prescription drug costs.  So a suggestion, what can

         24  we do?  Maybe we should look at a comprehensive

         25  health care program that will cover anyone with a
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          2  World Trade Center related illness that registered

          3  and they get full coverage as if it's a Line of Duty

          4  illness, which they are.  They're Line of Duty

          5  illnesses except they have not met those particular

          6  guidelines because of the --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Correct me

          8  if I  --  and I know that the best person to respond

          9  to this would be the Administration and not the

         10  unions, but I know you have some experience with

         11  that.  So the question would be that I would imagine

         12  that the City agency, whether it's NYPD or FDNY or

         13  any other, they have their own internal criteria and

         14  their own medical board that makes these

         15  determinations.  The medical board, I believe, would

         16  be still in their authority to classify them as Line

         17  of Duty injuries if they're 9/11 related illnesses.

         18  Would they not?

         19                 MR. BOLES: Yes, they would, and to

         20  their credit, Dr. Calloway and Dr. Prezant  --  I'll

         21  just talk on behalf of the fire officers.  We do

         22  have people that are enrolled in a program with

         23  World Trade Center related illnesses where their

         24  prescription drug costs are being picked up because

         25  of that $25 million dollar grant. That's why it's
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          2  imperative that we secure that $1.9 billion dollar

          3  grant so we can extend that coverage for the

          4  monitoring, treatment and diagnosis and treatment

          5  not just of firefighters, but of anyone that has

          6  suffered from a World Trade Center related illness

          7  whether it's the school kids that were going to

          8  Stuyvesant High School, or whether it was the

          9  volunteer workers.  Whoever it was, they should be

         10  covered.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay.

         12  Thank you very much.  I guess that would be it.

         13  Like I said, I think it would probably  --  Mr.

         14  Chair, if I could make a suggestion either for a

         15  follow- up hearing or if the Administration would

         16  provide someone who can testify as to that decision-

         17  making process, whether through the NYPD or FDNY,

         18  the processes that their medical board uses with

         19  respect to 9/11 illnesses.  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I had mentioned

         21  earlier, these kind of hearings will be done

         22  periodically because of the gravity of the issue,

         23  and again, how it's going to increase over time.  So

         24  this Committee will have these kind of hearings

         25  periodically, possibly centering on or focusing on a
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          2  particular issue, but we will plan to do this

          3  periodically, maybe on an every six- month basis or

          4  thereabouts.  So thank you very much.

          5                 We have a comment from Council Member

          6  Mike Nelson.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair.  Thank you, gentlemen for being here today.

          9  I'm depressed, but the antidotal information when

         10  you put a face on it, which you did, it's greatly

         11  distressing and embarrassing to this City.

         12                 One question I have with that, the

         13  billions that were raised, did any of those funds at

         14  all go to any of these families or any insurance

         15  involved to help the families who suffered the

         16  losses?

         17                 MR. BOLES: Are you referring to the

         18  Victims Compensation Fund?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yeah, there

         20  were a few of them I believe.

         21                 MR. EPPINGER: That went to families

         22  of Line of Duty death, and also disabled members.

         23                 MR. BOLES: Those monies did go to

         24  Line of Duty deaths.  Our big concern currently is

         25  members that are dying now, and they should be
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          2  considered members in Line of Duty because they

          3  responded to that scene.  For example, I was also a

          4  first responder and a lot of our officers knew it

          5  was a very dangerous situation, and we thought that

          6  there could be death down the line, but we did for

          7  our department, for our country, and all we want

          8  from the City is for our families to be compensated

          9  for, for my wife, for my children.  So I was willing

         10  to sacrifice, but I want my family to be taken care

         11  of, and that should be the obligation of the City.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: But there was

         13  no such contribution made for anything like we're

         14  experiencing today, the families themselves after

         15  the fact?

         16                 MR. EPPINGER: It's important to note

         17  that right now what our members are dealing with are

         18  what is considered chronic illnesses, and chronic

         19  illnesses  --  I'm not a doctor.  We had testimony

         20  from a great doctor who works at Mount Sinai  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I'm not

         22  suggesting that there has to be the only way to go.

         23  I'm just saying the City should be doing the work.

         24                 MR. EPPINGER: What's happening is

         25  that those who could have had the Victims Comp were
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          2  those who were acutely disabled from that or died.

          3  And now what's happening, five, ten years later  --

          4  It's going to be ten years later that we will see

          5  more and more chronic illnesses because it takes

          6  that much time for those illnesses to manifest, and

          7  we're starting to see it, and it's going to continue

          8  to grow.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, and in no

         10  way am I inferring that that's where it should come

         11  from.  It should be the City and the federal

         12  government just paying for this attack as if these

         13  people were actually fighting oversees.  I'm not

         14  going to express myself as strongly as I'd like

         15  because I don't like the appearance of grandstanding

         16  on 9/11 and the people who you'd be standing on, and

         17  I know the Mayor has to be a fiscal watchdog.  I'm

         18  sorry for that position because that takes a lot of

         19  guts to do that type of stuff, but it's extremely

         20  distressing and many of us are really p- o'd (sic)

         21  about the situation.  I can imagine how you

         22  gentlemen feel, and how the families feel.

         23                 I'm not going to dissect, and it's

         24  getting late and we'll be here through Easter and

         25  Passover if we really went into all of your
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          2  testimony, but page seven, I believe that I think

          3  Bob that you submitted, just briefly focus on one

          4  thing.  It's written that we believe that the

          5  employer is obligated to release the employee from

          6  work for all medical examinations and treatments

          7  related to WTC.  Seems to be the very least, that

          8  should be the case.  Has it actually done by the FD?

          9    It might have.  I'm not sure.

         10                 MR. EPPINGER: Our members go for an

         11  annual physical and part of that annual physical is

         12  the medical monitoring program related to WTC, and

         13  not only for our active members, but also for our

         14  retired members.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And EMS, for

         16  that matter, should be included with this.

         17                 MR. EPPINGER: We go for an annual

         18  physical.  If we have an issue with WTC that we're

         19  going to be directly under the card of Dr. Prezant

         20  and Dr. Kelly, it's released, but if you're not

         21  currently on a case through Workers' Comp, or it's

         22  controverted, that's on your own time.  You have to

         23  use your own sick leave banks, and then when that is

         24  gone, then you use your own vacation and then your

         25  without pay to go see the doctor.

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So if you're

          3  not really sure maybe you don't have to go.  Why

          4  take time out from your bank?

          5                 MR. EPPINGER: I'm talking about sick

          6  people.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: And sick

          8  people  --

          9                 MR. EPPINGER: I'm not talking about

         10  people that might say I think I have a cough.  This

         11  is people that are suffering, and their case has

         12  been controverted by the City Law Department, and

         13  they're using their own time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.  I'm

         15  glad we're looking into this and discussing it.  It

         16  appears to be a flare for the obvious, but these

         17  people should be allowed to go and on City time

         18  based upon what they have been through.  Well

         19  there's a lot of oddities with this whole process,

         20  and that's why I'm glad and proud to be part of this

         21  Committee, and that Joe Addabo is digging into this

         22  because a lot has to be rectified.  Thank you very

         23  much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member Nelson.  Again, gentlemen as we go
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          2  forward looking for fairness and equality in trying

          3  to treat everyone that we can, those who need it,

          4  again, I suggest that you forward or we work with

          5  any suggestions you may have for the Administration.

          6    I look forward to communicating that together

          7  hopefully in the near future.  So thank you very

          8  much for your time and testimony today.  Thank you.

          9                 Our next panel, Jim Woodworth from

         10  the New York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project,

         11  as well as Pete Gleason.

         12                 The panel after that is John

         13  Vinciguerra.

         14                 Mr. Woodworth, do you want

         15  Vinciguerra up with you now?  Sorry, we're good.

         16                 MR. WOODWORTH: Thank you, Chairman

         17  Addabbo and Committee Members for holding this very

         18  important hearing on the health crisis facing the

         19  rescue workers of 9/11.

         20                 In my work as President of the New

         21  York Rescue Workers Detoxification Project, I find

         22  it very upsetting that day in and day out I

         23  encounter heroes of 9/11 who are suffering from

         24  serious health problems.  I am saddened by their

         25  illness.  The sadness is made more intense because
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          2  the physicians that I work with know that a simple,

          3  effective and safe solution exists that could bring

          4  many of them immediate relief and restore their

          5  quality of life, but because it does not have broad

          6  support from government, we cannot provide these

          7  solution to every man and woman who is suffering

          8  needlessly.

          9                 Everyone knows of the asthma,

         10  fatigue, acid reflux, PTSD, and numerous other

         11  symptoms that have resulted from the worst toxic

         12  environmental disaster our country has ever seen.

         13  In the last years, we have also seen an increasing

         14  number of deaths that appeared to be linked to these

         15  exposures.

         16                 Our physicians and staff have

         17  detoxified and completed 780 men and women affected

         18  by World Trade Center exposures, with over 90

         19  percent reporting significant relief of all of their

         20  symptoms.  These results are well known within the

         21  rescue worker community, but to our surprise, some

         22  health officials have expressed relatively little

         23  interest in these recoveries.

         24                 Because we do not receive annual

         25  government funding, and the fact that we are
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          2  committed to providing services to rescue workers at

          3  no cost, we depend on private sector donations.  We

          4  can help hundreds with a million dollars.  It is a

          5  full- time job, in fact, to try to raise the funds

          6  to meet all those who have asked for our help.

          7                 To date, the Project has raised over

          8  $6 million dollars philanthropically.  We have also

          9  treated rescue workers who live in 50 of the 51

         10  districts in the City of New York.  Due to this

         11  level of service and growing demand, Council Members

         12  are working on a proposed City Council initiative.

         13  This initiative will allow greatly expanded access

         14  from all five boroughs for rescue workers seeking

         15  this vital service.

         16                 The Detoxification Program provided

         17  by Dr. Gelb was developed by L. Ron Hubbard.  Mr.

         18  Hubbard is a well known author and founder of the

         19  Scientology religion.  It is less widely known that

         20  he developed methods and materials that are used in

         21  hundreds of government, community and educational

         22  programs throughout the world.  These programs are

         23  not religious.

         24                 The detoxification program he

         25  developed has been used to address occupational and
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          2  environmental exposures for a quarter of a century,

          3  and has been the subject of a continuously growing

          4  body of published scientific papers.  Given the fact

          5  that physicians receive very little training in

          6  environmental health, it is not surprising that

          7  their education would not include a review of this

          8  work, which is well- documented but not part of the

          9  routine established academic curriculum.

         10                 Ignorance of the scope of Mr.

         11  Hubbard's work in this field and the programs that

         12  utilize it has not prevented some individuals from

         13  making inaccurate statements that confuse both the

         14  public and officials who are trying to help rescue

         15  workers.

         16                 I would like to take this opportunity

         17  to clarify the most common and divisive

         18  misconceptions.  The first is that this project is a

         19  part of a religion, the Church of Scientology, and

         20  that the project's design is to win converts.  This

         21  in not true. We are an independent 501(c)3 as

         22  recognized by the IRS and are not part of any

         23  church.  We have no religious mission.

         24                 To date the project has served rescue

         25  workers who are members of diverse faiths, Catholic,
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          2  Jewish, Muslim, Mormon, Jehovah's Witnesses, Born

          3  Again Christians, Buddhist and many others.  If you

          4  have the time and interest, members of each of these

          5  faiths could appear for testimony.  They would

          6  consider it well worth the time if such testimony

          7  could help more of their colleagues receive our

          8  services.

          9                 Quite frankly, the attention given to

         10  these non issues and the tone of the discourse

         11  regarding them can only be characterized as bigotry.

         12    The worst thing is that this hate speech, and

         13  there is no other word for it, overshadows the only

         14  important issue.  This program has helped over 800

         15  rescue workers. That is what any sane, compassionate

         16  person would find worthy of attention.

         17                 Our agenda is simple.  Or physician

         18  and staff want to help the rescue workers.  We're

         19  accomplishing this daily.  The rescue workers want

         20  this program included in their health care choice.

         21  End of story.

         22                 We are well aware that this project

         23  did not arrive on the usual channels, and that in

         24  the world of politics, it takes considerable courage

         25  to do something different.  I want to thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman and the Labor Relations Committee Members

          3  for having the courage to hold this hearing and to

          4  include a project which surely has a different

          5  approach to handling the health problems of our

          6  heroes, but has demonstrated over the course of four

          7  and a half years to be very effective.

          8                 We need your help, and I can assure

          9  you that the rescue workers need and want what we

         10  have to offer.  Thank you.

         11                 MR. GLEASON: Thank you, Chairman and

         12  Committee Members.  My name is Peter Gleason.  I'm a

         13  retired member of the New York City Fire Department,

         14  as well as a practicing attorney representing both

         15  police officer, fire fighters, EMT's and other

         16  uniformed members of local City service.

         17                 Well over five years ago, after the

         18  attacks on the World Trade Center, thousands of

         19  rescue workers still remain ill. The health

         20  establishment has few answers for them.  Worse, the

         21  heroes of 9/11 are still waiting for the City

         22  Administration to treat them as individual human

         23  beings rather than a set of replaceable,

         24  interchangeable numbers.

         25                 It's not enough to make speeches.
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          2  It's not enough to set aside money for treatment

          3  that turns out to be nothing more than health

          4  surveys and medication to suppress symptoms that

          5  just won't go away.

          6                 We should be seeing the fearless

          7  determination that was commonplace at Ground Zero.

          8  We should be seeing daily evidence that no one in

          9  government or public health will rest until a path

         10  is found that leads to recovery of health and

         11  quality of life. Unfortunately, we are not.

         12                 Some officials just don't seem to get

         13  it.  Sending the signal that the City could care

         14  less about its police, firefighters, paramedics,

         15  sanitation workers and all other uniformed members,

         16  and all other City employees and residents who

         17  responded to this call.  It's this first line of

         18  defense against terrorism and other disasters that's

         19  sending a very dangerous message that will be

         20  transmitted through generations of City employees.

         21  Not only is this inhumane, it's bad business.  While

         22  the FDNY medical office in Mount Sinai are spending

         23  tens of millions of dollars with federal funds, it's

         24  apparent, even from their own reports, that we may

         25  never fully understand the health impact of 9/11.
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          2  It's time to face the fact that the extraordinary

          3  circumstances of 9/11 are going to require

          4  extraordinary solutions. It cannot be business as

          5  usual.

          6                 I had retired from FDNY prior to 9/11

          7  and was working in the North Tower of the World

          8  Trade Center.  Ironically, I spoke with my partner a

          9  few months before the attacks about the proper steps

         10  to take in the event of a building fire.  Though he

         11  was able to escape, thousands of others,

         12  unfortunately, were not. I volunteered at the pile

         13  for a week of long days with very little sleep.

         14  This was enough exposure to put me in a chronic

         15  pathological condition.  The tightness in my chest

         16  began soon after, though it took a while for the

         17  damage to my immune system to bring the inflammation

         18  into full blown sinusitis and asthma.

         19                 By about a year after my exposure, I

         20  had a tremendous amount of difficulty breathing.  I

         21  had no choice but to grab the drugs that were

         22  offered.  It was quite simply a choice between

         23  breathing and not breathing.  Along with these many

         24  courses of antibiotics for my sinus infections were

         25  drugs treating only the effects of the damage.
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          2                 Representing many of the injured

          3  rescue workers gave me a truly good reason to

          4  breath.  As one who suffered the after effects of

          5  toxic exposure with them, I felt I was highly

          6  qualified to serve as their attorney.

          7                 I plugged along for about four years.

          8    My medication began to have less and less of an

          9  impact on my symptoms.  When I first heard about the

         10  detoxification from one of my clients, I had the

         11  fairly standard response, drugs and alcohol detox.

         12  Then I discovered the word referred to a procedure,

         13  the Hubbard sauna detoxification, that was vastly,

         14  in their words, improving their health.

         15                 I jumped in with both feet for 35

         16  days.  Basically, it reminded me of my basic

         17  training some 25 years ago with the U.S. Coast

         18  Guard.  While going through it, you think to

         19  yourself, what the hell am I doing here?  But when

         20  it's over, it becomes absolutely clear why you did

         21  it.  Quite honestly, I felt great, breathing freely

         22  again.  With increased lung capacity came heightened

         23  stamina, great improved energy level and overall

         24  terrific quality of life.

         25                 I was convinced that it was critical
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          2  that other rescue workers should have choices beyond

          3  the time will heal approach that has left so many

          4  waiting in vain for the day that their health will

          5  return.  Detoxification was a positive alternative

          6  that had helped hundreds.  To advocate for this

          7  choice, I agreed to chair Rescue Workers for Health

          8  and Justice.

          9                 We have a long road ahead of us.  For

         10  starters, the City Council and the U.S. Congress and

         11  others should hold hearings, as you are doing, and

         12  we do truly appreciate that, to look at the

         13  correlations between such deaths as Detective

         14  Zadroga's, and others exposed to the toxic World

         15  Trade Center cloud.

         16                 If firefighters and police officers

         17  can get paid leave for alcohol detoxification, they

         18  should be extended the same privilege for chemical

         19  detoxification because surely it is job related.

         20                 While it is highly commendable that

         21  hundreds of individuals, along with numerous

         22  foundations and corporations have donated money to

         23  make this program free to rescue workers, it should

         24  be covered through health insurance.  Government

         25  funding will also be necessary to reach all those
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          2  who truly need help.

          3                 In addition to helping men and women

          4  regain their health, we need a breath of fresh air

          5  to sweep away the emotional toxicity of 9/11.  City

          6  officials could send a healing message by taking

          7  visible steps towards including this program and the

          8  options available to rescue workers.  It is the time

          9  for the waiting to end.

         10                 In closing, I would like to

         11  personally invite any elected official to tour the

         12  detox facility with a special invitation to those

         13  individuals who have been most outspoken on the 9/11

         14  health- related issues including Senator Clinton,

         15  Congress Members Nadler and Maloney, and the City

         16  Council Member for the 1st District, Alan Gerson.

         17                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         18  share with my personal insight into this most

         19  important matter.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gentlemen, thank

         21  you very much, and just a couple of quick questions.

         22  Mr. Woodworth, how is a person contacted?  Do you

         23  have any outreach program, or do you wait for

         24  basically someone to contact you regarding your

         25  treatment?
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          2                 MR. WOODWORTH: Right now, most of the

          3  patients that come to Dr. Gelb and the facility are

          4  by word- of- mouth.  We have over 100 New York City

          5  police officers on a waiting list, over another 150

          6  firefighters, iron workers, laborers and over 350

          7  Local 78 workers.  So we have no problem with people

          8  wanting the service. It's just being able to meet

          9  the growing demand for those rescue workers who are

         10  symptomatic.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the cost of

         12  treatment to someone who goes through the program

         13   --  how much does it cost?

         14                 MR. WOODWORTH: Right now for

         15  everything from the physical exams, the lab work and

         16  all the monitoring that Dr. Gelb does, which

         17  includes pulmonary function testing, complete lab

         18  work, EKG's before and after, IQ and personality

         19  testing, and an average of 34 days of treatment,

         20  seven days a week, three and a half to four hours a

         21  day or evening, it's about $5,000 dollars to put one

         22  rescue worker through.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: No cost to the

         24  rescue worker?

         25                 MR. WOODWORTH: No.  We're a charity.
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          2  We're a 501(c)(3).

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now, prior to

          4  you getting up here, you heard testimony of

          5  illnesses that are out there, the drugs that are

          6  being taken.  Somebody is on 26 pills and so forth

          7  and so on.  Of those illnesses that you have heard

          8  and the treatments that are being done, you're

          9  saying that your program is a little different and

         10  basically you can have the same result, hopefully

         11  even better, helping somebody get cured.

         12                 MR. WOODWORTH: Our physicians and

         13  scientists just did an outcome review of 484

         14  patients and 84 percent of the patients that Dr.

         15  Gelb has put through this program are medication

         16  free, and we now have firefighters and police

         17  officers who four and a half years ago arrived for

         18  the program who were on six to ten medications just

         19  to breath who are four years out enjoying their

         20  families and you know symptomatic free.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Without the

         22  medications?

         23                 MR. WOODWORTH: Right.  So that means

         24  there are 16 percent of those individuals that are

         25  still utilizing their medications.  Dr. Gelb can
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          2  speak probably better to that, but the vast majority

          3  of people were able to relieve their symptoms and

          4  we're now four years out with symptom relief.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Like mentioned

          6  earlier, Council Member Monserrate had said that he

          7  had visited your facility.  I had taken the time out

          8  based on our last hearing that we did in September

          9   '06 to visit the facility.  Again, I was impressed

         10  with the professionalism, and to hear from workers

         11  who were there, similar to Mr. Gleason's testimony

         12  that it does help them and each case obviously being

         13  different, but you and I both know of the hurdles

         14  that you had to jump, and continue to have to jump

         15  over, because of, like you mentioned in your

         16  testimony, the stigma that is attached to the

         17  Detoxification Project, which is the Scientology

         18  aspect of it all.  So pardon me for being blunt, but

         19  I want to through this and maybe once and for all,

         20  but nobody  --  correct me if I'm wrong.  You do not

         21  look to convert anyone.  Is that correct?

         22                 MR. WOODWORTH: That's correct.  Our

         23  charity was formed in 1997 to treat sick Gulf War

         24  veterans.  Our mission is very clear, to help rescue

         25  recovery workers, who have been exposed to toxic
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          2  chemicals, reduce their body burden of chemicals.

          3  Our physician, Dr. Gelb, is Jewish.  I'm a

          4  Scientologist.  The fact of the matter is that we

          5  don't care what religion a person is.  If they want

          6  our services, and the rescued, recovered or cleaned

          7  up that site from September 11th, 2001 until the

          8  last piece of debris was removed in October of 2003,

          9  they qualify to receive our services for free.  You

         10  know, the good news is, since the last hearing which

         11  you were so gracious in allowing us to speak at, is

         12  that we know have, since that time, the full support

         13  of the 27,000 plus member PBA union, the 25,000

         14  Fraternal Order of Police for New York State, the

         15  Paramedic/EMT union, the Detective Investigators

         16  Association, which are all the district attorney

         17  detectives, Local 78 with over 3,000 members.  So

         18  the hurdles are less and less because they union

         19  officials and the labor officials see that we

         20  actually have helped their members, and it's cutting

         21  their costs, and it is cutting the cost to their

         22  members of out- of- pocket expenses for the

         23  different symptoms that they have been having to

         24  treat for the last five years.  So it's becoming

         25  less and less of an issue for us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I'm happy to

          3  see that because again, a person really cannot deny

          4  a program that works.

          5                 MR. WOODWORTH: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I've heard

          7  of enough testimony from people who have either

          8  called my office or have written to me with regards

          9  to similar to Mr. Gleason, regarding basically going

         10  through the program and it working.  Mr. Gleason,

         11  I'll ask you the same question.  Going through the

         12  program, did you feel in any way pressured into  --

         13  I don't know what religion you are, but did you feel

         14  pressured into switching?

         15                 MR. GLEASON: Absolutely not.  I

         16  started the program as a Roman Catholic, and I went

         17  through the program in January of 2006, and I am

         18  still a practicing Roman Catholic.  There was never

         19  any conversation, there was never any innuendo or

         20  there was nothing pushing you towards the religion

         21  of Scientology.  It was strictly set up.  These

         22  folks get it, and I've been through enough studies.

         23  I've been to enough physicians.  You know you walk

         24  into a physician's office.  You immediately know

         25  what that physician bedside manner is.  These folks
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          2  get it.  They're there to help, and they want to

          3  help, and they want to make you feel better.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So lastly, Mr.

          5  Woodworth, your connection or your conversation with

          6  the City and the Administration, have they included

          7  you in type of hey we're looking to obviously help

          8  our City workers too.  How about we work together?

          9  Have they reached out to you, or have you reached

         10  out to them?  Has there been a working cooperation

         11  with the Mayor's Administration to this point?

         12                 MR. WOODWORTH: To the Mayor's credit,

         13  we were included in the Report.  We did get a

         14  footnote.  I think three sentences acknowledging the

         15  fact that we had treated about 74 Department of

         16  Sanitation workers very successfully.  We had

         17  invited the Mayor's 9/11 Panel to come in and tour

         18  the facility without a response.  So we were

         19  surprised that we were even mentioned, but we do

         20  have just different people, not the actual

         21  representatives of the City but the different

         22  uniformed fire service, police agencies, law

         23  enforcement that have asked us to come in and

         24  educate the City employees, which we've done now

         25  with hundreds and hundreds of City employees who are
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          2  ill, to let them know that this program is available

          3  to them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Let me again

          5  thank you and acknowledge the good work that you

          6  have done and I wish you a lot of luck as you

          7  forward in attracting as many City workers who are

          8  in need as possible.  So thank you very much.

          9                 MR. WOODWORTH: Thank you for your

         10  assistance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate it.

         12    Thank you for your time.  Next I'd like to call up

         13  John Vinciguerra, Firefighter.

         14                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: Thank you, Chairman

         15  Addabbo for inviting me back a second time and

         16  Council Members.  Again, I'd like to thank you for

         17  this opportunity to come back and update the

         18  Council.

         19                 First the good news.  After an

         20  appeal, I was accepted of our Workers' Compensation,

         21  and subsequently approved for a disability pension

         22  by NYSERS.  My medications are now being provided to

         23  me by Workers' Compensation, and I no longer have

         24  any out- of- pocket expenses for them.

         25                 While it is a good thing that my
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          2  lungs are not subjected anymore to dust, fumes and

          3  diesel smoke from the station I was at for my light

          4  duty spot, it was a sad day when I had to turn in my

          5  badge and end an 18- year career with the Fire

          6  Department.  It's not how I envisioned or wanted it

          7  to end.

          8                 Unfortunately, my medical condition

          9  has failed to improve.  When tested at the Fire

         10  Department Health Services earlier this month, my

         11  lung capacity was at 42 percent.  Before I became

         12  sick, I could carry bodies over obstacles wearing a

         13  fully encapsulated hazmat suit and 50 pounds of

         14  equipment on my back for long periods of time.  Now

         15  I can't run and play with my children anymore.  I

         16  have to spend most of my time at home in front of an

         17  HEPA air filter, which is now my best friend  Severe

         18  lung spasms can be brought on by smoke, hot, cold,

         19  perfumes, pollution, basically anything I can come

         20  in contact with.  I constantly suffer from

         21  respiratory and sinus infections that require me to

         22  take antibiotics and oral as well the inhaled

         23  steroids.  I've also developed sleep apnea and have

         24  to use a machine at night to keep me breathing.  To

         25  use it, I have to put a mask over my face and nose
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          2  that blows air under pressure to my head.  It makes

          3  me feel like if you're on an airplane and your ears

          4  are about to pop.  It makes it difficult to sleep

          5  and it's uncomfortable, but it's much better than

          6  the alternative which would be not waking up at all.

          7       Again, this is despite the numerous medications

          8  that I have been taking.

          9                 At 39 years old, if my condition

         10  continues to worsen, my best chance for improvement

         11  would be to have a heart and lung transplant.  This

         12  would involve a long waiting period, if I were even

         13  able to convince Workers' Comp that it's necessary.

         14                 April 30th will mark two years that

         15  my original pulmonologist has not been paid by

         16  Workers' Compensation.  When I was told earlier last

         17  year that he would no longer treat me due to the

         18  hardship of the escalating unpaid bills on his

         19  practice, it took me over a month to find another

         20  pulmonologist that would accept Workers' Comp

         21  because of those hardships.

         22                 Creditors are calling my home day and

         23  night, and dropping my credit score because of the

         24  unpaid hospital and doctors bills.

         25                 So while progress is being made,
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          2  there still is a long way to go.  The public and

          3  political pressure being brought to bear is a

          4  positive thing, and has accomplished a lot.

          5  Continued funding for monitoring, and especially

          6  treatment, is what will help the most people spot

          7  trends and cut through the red tape.

          8                 I'll take any questions you have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: John, you are a

         10  snapshot and really representing thousands of City

         11  workers who are in your position.  So again, I

         12  appreciate your time here today, and it's

         13  disheartening to see that that's what you had to go

         14  through.  So in a nutshell, from the time that you

         15  first either felt ill effects, or were diagnosed, to

         16  the time that you were actually assisted was how

         17  long?

         18                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: January of 2002 I

         19  started feeling the first effects and the Fire

         20  Department was treating me. However, it didn't

         21  become severe until April of 2005.  From that point

         22  on to prove that it was World Trade Center related,

         23  it took over a year for Workers' Compensation to

         24  acknowledge that and to start covering the medical

         25  bills.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Right, and to

          3  the fact that the compensation aspect of it all took

          4  a period of time as well.

          5                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I know you have

          7  been sitting here.  I know you've been here for a

          8  while now.  You've heard testimony.  Are you

          9  encouraged?  Are you disappointed?  What are you

         10  feeling today hearing the testimony that you have

         11  heard from the Administration, the Panel and others?

         12                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: I guess in a way I'm

         13  encouraged for myself that I've moved along to the

         14  point where I am now, but I feel for the people who

         15  are where I was two years ago that still have to

         16  navigate through everything I did.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, currently

         18  you are on medication?

         19                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: Currently, I'm on

         20  several medications.  I'm on eight medications a

         21  day.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: What is your

         23  diagnosis going forward?

         24                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: Well, there is

         25  scarring on my lungs.  There are nodules in my
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          2  lungs, and depending on whether they get worse or

          3  not, I'll know whether I need a lung transplant or

          4  not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, if there

          6  is anyway that this Committee can be of assistance,

          7  please do not hesitate to reach out to us.  You know

          8  you've heard from our federal elected officials.

          9  Obviously that federal funding is critical.  It's

         10  very important.  So we're hopeful that they can pull

         11  through and obviously get the $1.9 that we need,

         12  but, again, I look forward to working with you as we

         13  go forward.  I thank you very much for what you've

         14  done helping this City, and again, we appreciate

         15  your time here today because you are the face of the

         16  problem that's out there.  So thank you.  Thanks for

         17  being here.

         18                 MR. VINCIGUERRA: You are very welcome

         19  and thank you for helping.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And our last

         21  panel for today, Dr. Phyllis Gelb, William Morrisey

         22  and Steve Mona from the New York Rescue Workers

         23  Detox Project.

         24                 Thank you very much for being here

         25  today.  Just please state your name and give your
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          2  testimony please.  Just hit the red button.

          3                 DR. GELB: Good afternoon.  My name is

          4  Phyllis Gelb, and I am a private practice physician

          5  overseeing the delivery of detoxification services

          6  by the New York Rescue Workers Detoxification

          7  Program.

          8                 To date, this project has had the

          9  privilege of helping nearly 800 men and women.  The

         10  recoveries that I am seeing on a daily basis

         11  continue to surprise me.  They are a dramatic

         12  contrast to the sad stories that appear in our

         13  papers and the dire predictions of life long

         14  illnesses that we have recently heard from health

         15  officials.

         16                 When a patient comes to me with a

         17  complaint and the remedy that I offer causes the

         18  complaint to decrease significantly, or vanish

         19  altogether, I consider this a good result.  This is

         20  the result I have come to expect when an individual

         21  fully completes the detoxification program.

         22                 It is particularly rewarding to serve

         23  the rescue worker community.  Unlike some patients I

         24  have encountered in my career, rescue workers truly

         25  want to get better.  They don't want to be dependent
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          2  on medications, and they don't want to be judged

          3  unfit for work.  They love their jobs, and they want

          4  to be productive and give back to society.  Such

          5  individuals deserve to have access to every workable

          6  health care option that is available.

          7                 I am disappointed that more of my

          8  colleagues have not taken to visit our facility to

          9  see for themselves the results that are being

         10  achieved and to become educated regarding the

         11  Hubbard Detoxification Program.  I can assure you

         12  that if they had developed a method that had done

         13  this much good for this many people, they would be

         14  expecting prizes, promotions and medals.

         15                 We are doing all we can to rigorously

         16  monitor our results.  A report on nearly 500 cases

         17  was recently published in the Townsend Letter, a

         18  magazine for physicians and patients.  I am one of

         19  the authors of this report, and have brought a copy

         20  with me today for inclusion in the record.

         21                 The cases reviewed reported

         22  remarkable severity reduction in each of ten

         23  categories of symptoms associated with chemical

         24  exposures.  As a result, 84 percent of clients who

         25  had required medications to manage symptoms related
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          2  to WTC exposure were able to discontinue their use

          3  by program end.  This is an important outcome.  I

          4  have come across cases where use of long- term

          5  medications are not reducing symptoms or resolving

          6  the underlying program.  However, the detox program

          7  restored these patients to good health and

          8  eliminated the need for symptomatic use of

          9  medication.

         10                 We must face the fact that the

         11  exposures that occurred as a result of the attacks

         12  of the World Trade Center are so complex and

         13  unprecedented that they may never be fully

         14  understood.  We can learn from this disaster, but it

         15  is a scientific puzzle that no one has the means to

         16  solve.

         17                 Taking into account my basic

         18  responsibility as a physician, I consider it a

         19  profound injustice that rescue workers are suffering

         20  when means exist to bring them relief.

         21                 We are not dealing with statistics.

         22  We are dealing with men and women who have spouses

         23  and families who come to my office in despair,

         24  beaten down, without hope, without energy to live

         25  their lives or pursue their dreams.  They regain
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          2  hope and quality of life as a result of what we

          3  offer them.  I consider this to be an excellent

          4  outcome.  We are seeing these improvements retained

          5  stably in individuals who completed as long as 2002.

          6                 We cannot predict what the future

          7  will bring, but there is not doubt that

          8  detoxification resulted in major improvements in

          9  their quality of life, from basis health to work

         10  fitness and family relationships.  It was the right

         11  thing to do.

         12                 We continue to hear from institutions

         13  that are receiving federal funds that it will take

         14  decades to fully understand the health impact of

         15  9/11 exposures.  This is important work, but we can

         16  do more.  We can provide relief.

         17                 I thank you for your interest in this

         18  program, and welcome anything you can do to help us

         19  reach more rescue workers.

         20                 Councilwoman Lopez deserves high

         21  praises for her pioneering efforts to make

         22  detoxification available to workers of the

         23  Department of Sanitation, in whose eyes she is a

         24  true hero.  On behalf of the many rescue workers who

         25  continue to ask for our help, I hope that you can
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          2  continue this work.  Thank you.

          3                 MR. MORRISEY: Thank you for this

          4  chance to speak on behalf of the New York Rescue

          5  Workers Detox Project.  My name is Bill Morrisey.  I

          6  served the NYPD for 15 years, and retired as a

          7  Sergeant.  Prior to that, I had served some time in

          8  the FDNY.

          9                 Like my colleagues, I spent months at

         10  the World Trade Center, participating in the rescue

         11  and recovery operations and securing the site.

         12  There is no doubt that we were in toxic zone.  There

         13  was dust, gas, fumes and smoke.  That was a given,

         14  but as I'm sure others have told you, that was the

         15  last thing on our minds.  We were focused on our

         16  mission.

         17                 I began to notice the effects from my

         18  exposures within a couple of weeks of my first day

         19  at the World Trade Center. I had the cough, the

         20  sinus congestion and by December, I was told that I

         21  had asthma.

         22                 I had been in good shape before the

         23  attacks, and never had any real health concerns.  As

         24  the months passed, and then the years, things

         25  definitely got worse.
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          2                 I had a constant pressure in my

          3  sinuses and chest. Because of this, and my breathing

          4  difficulties, sleep was non-existent.  If I was

          5  lucky, I would get three, maybe four 45-minute

          6  stretches in a night.  This led to continual

          7  fatigue, stress and just a general lack of interest

          8  in anything.  As you might imagine, this was

          9  definitely a strain on my marriage.

         10                 The doctors I saw stuck to the story

         11  that asthma was my only problem.  One would suggest

         12  one inhaler, the next would tell me I needed a

         13  different one.  The best I could hope for would be

         14  an occasional moment of slight relief.

         15                 They didn't think my other symptoms

         16  were important. None of them really wanted to talk

         17  about the fact that I might have been exposed to

         18  toxic materials.  In my opinion, they didn't want to

         19  be the one to put their name on that diagnosis.  It

         20  was too controversial, too political.  They really

         21  didn't want to get involved.

         22                 At this point, I was running out of

         23  options.  I had had some in-laws who had beat cancer

         24  through surgery, radiation and with the help of a

         25  nutritionist.  After all the other methods failed, I
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          2  went to see him and the nutritionist had shared some

          3  information concerning this detoxification project.

          4  After this, my wife and I had looked into it, and I

          5  was surprised to find out that Joe Higgins was one

          6  of the early graduates.  He had been my drill

          7  instructor in the FDNY Academy.  I gave him a call

          8  and basically he said do it.  The conversation just

          9  kept getting back to do it.

         10                 I've been on the program for about

         11  two weeks now. Today is day 14.  I'm not done yet,

         12  but already the changes are phenomenal.  I can

         13  sleep.  If you've gone more than five years without

         14  good sleep, you know what a big deal that is.

         15                 I've also observed some dramatic

         16  changes after my sessions in the sauna.  For two

         17  nights, I had a puss-like substance coming out of my

         18  eyes.  My back and my chest became covered with tiny

         19  bumps that would bleed slightly.  I experienced a

         20  lot of discharge from my nose as well, but basically

         21  I worked through these things and my energy is

         22  slowly but surely coming back.  I can finally smell

         23  and breath for the first time in five years.  It's

         24  absolutely amazing.

         25                 I don't why it took so long for me to
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          2  find out about this program, but from what I hear,

          3  there are plenty of politicians and public officials

          4  who know it's out there.  You'd think they would be

          5  spreading the word.  I definitely will be.

          6  Basically, I'm a cop from Flatbush.  I'm a cynic.  I

          7  don't recommend mechanics, doctors or anything else

          8  I don't agree with a thousand percent. This program

          9  I'm telling you is a thousand and ten percent.  It

         10  should be available to all the rescue workers.  I

         11  hope I can help this come to pass and I hope you can

         12  too.  Thank you very much for your time.

         13                 MR. MONA: Mr. Chair, and Committee

         14  Members, thank you for the opportunity to speak to

         15  you today.  My name is Steve Mona.  I served the New

         16  York City Police Department for 21 years as a

         17  Lieutenant S/A, or Special Assignment.  I worked at

         18  the site from September 11th six or seven days a

         19  week through October, and then continued for a few

         20  days a week until the end of that year.

         21                 I will say right off that my exposure

         22  is certainly a lot less than the other firefighters,

         23  cops, iron workers, Port Authority Police, and

         24  others who were in the thick of it for much longer

         25  than I was.  It makes me wonder if I got as sick as
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          2  I did, how sick are they?  Their symptoms have to be

          3  worse, or will eventually become worse than mine

          4  were.

          5                 Before my exposures, I wasn't overly

          6  active, but I was in good shape for my age, 41 at

          7  that time.  I had a good, active lifestyle.  For me,

          8  the breathing difficulty came on within six months

          9  of the exposures.  So I started to go to doctors for

         10  help.

         11                 It got to the point where I could

         12  barely walk for any length of time.  I could not

         13  talk with without getting winded. I put on 50 pounds

         14  in the six months after 9/11 and went from 205 to

         15  255.  I had aches and pains in my arms, and tingling

         16  and numbness in my hands.  There were times I

         17  thought I was having a heart attack.

         18                 I went to doctors and I had a stress

         19  test.  It showed that my heart was okay.  I was told

         20  the problem was probably my lungs.  I then went to a

         21  lung specialist, and he said I was okay also.  Well,

         22  I knew I was not imagining being out of breath.  One

         23  doctor even said that he had seen people who were

         24  exposed and had health problems from the World Trade

         25  Center, and that I was sick and didn't have what

                                                            173

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  they had.  It didn't make any sense to me.  I had

          3  never smoked and I could not breathe right.  I was

          4  given steroids and other medications, but I didn't

          5  feel they were helping, and the steroids were

          6  causing some of the weight gain, so I ended up

          7  stopping taking them.  I carried an inhaler, but

          8  just for emergencies.

          9                 I'm the National Secretary of a law

         10  enforcement and military motorcycle club which

         11  supports the project, and one of our contributors

         12  knew how my health had suffered.  He wanted me to do

         13  the program to get some relief.  It took me a while

         14  to call, but I finally got sick and tired of being

         15  sick and I picked up the phone.

         16                 I completed the program about six

         17  months ago, and I could sum up the results in one

         18  short phrase.  I got my life back totally.  The

         19  difference is night and day.  I can breathe.  I can

         20  exercise.  Anything I was complaining about when I

         21  started the program is gone.  I've also realized

         22  that the mental changes are enormous.  I'm not

         23  haunted.  When you're not a hundred percent and you

         24  see the other people around you getting sick, you're

         25  constantly in dread.  Is my time coming?  Am I next?
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          2    That is gone, and that's a huge plus.

          3                 The need for this program is bigger

          4  than ever.  We don't need anymore studies.  While

          5  all these studies are going on, people are dying.

          6                 There is a cliche that those who do

          7  not learn from history are condemned to repeat it.

          8  I think that applies here.

          9                 After Vietnam, veterans were told

         10  that they didn't need to worry about their

         11  exposures.  They couldn't have been affected by

         12  them.  So they studied them for thirty years, and

         13  finally decided yeah, there was a problem.  I don't

         14  want that to happen to the rescue workers.  They're

         15  taking medications that were not meant for long-

         16  term use.  Eventually the medication has no effect

         17  other than to foster new symptoms.

         18                 Supporting this program is the most

         19  cost- effective thing you can do.  More importantly,

         20  it is the most humane thing you can do because it

         21  gets to the cause of the problem.  When I came to

         22  this program, I thought many of my problems could be

         23  explained by the fact that I was getting old.  Then

         24  I found out that everyone else was having the same

         25  problems, including men much younger than I was.  We
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          2  were toxic, and that was the problem.

          3                 That is all behind me now, and I want

          4  the same for others.  I am encouraged to think that

          5  you share this goal, and I'd just like to say

          6  something that's not in my written statement here is

          7  I think it speaks volumes when you consider that the

          8  two people the NYPD sent here were a doctor and a

          9  lawyer.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         11  much.  First Dr. Gelb, the Detoxification Project

         12  has how many sites?

         13                 DR. GELB: One.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: For the record,

         15  can you give the address please?

         16                 DR. GELB: 139 Fulton Street, New York

         17  City, Suite 515.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the number?

         19                 DR. GELB: And the number?  I'm sorry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The number for

         21  the program.

         22                 DR. GELB: The telephone number?  I

         23  never dial it. It's in my  --  I don't know a number

         24  anymore.  I just  --  you know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's on speed
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          2  dial.  Okay.  It's 212- 587- 3961.  Thank you.  You

          3  have a registry.  That registry  -- I'm sure it's

          4  kept updated.  Is that correct?

          5                 DR. GELB: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That registry

          7  obviously becomes very important as we go on, and we

          8  learn obviously as we go on because the illnesses

          9  will become varied and wider and different as we go

         10  along, so I appreciate that.

         11                 Mr. Mona, and Mr. Morrisey, first let

         12  me thank you very much again for your commitment and

         13  dedication to the City as members of NYPD, 21 years

         14  on the job and 15 years on the job.  I appreciate

         15  that.  Thank you very much.  Briefly, because I

         16  don't think we really went into detail.  What is the

         17  project?  What is the program, if you want to go

         18  through it?  Somebody comes forward. They're not

         19  feeling well.  What will they entail as they go

         20  before the Detoxification Project?

         21                 MR. MONA: I'm presently going through

         22  the program.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And you've

         24  finished the program, correct?  So why don't you

         25  start, and then you can finish up.  So go ahead.
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          2                 MR. MONA: Yes.  Basically, you start

          3  out with a physical exam.  They make that you're

          4  able to go through the program without any

          5  difficulties, et cetera.  If you're healthy enough

          6  to go through the program, it's constantly

          7  monitored.  It's seven days a week, and it's going

          8  to be a minimum of four to five hours a day.  That

          9  includes exercise, monitoring and periods of time in

         10  the sauna where you do notice different

         11  manifestations that happen.  You're also on a

         12  regimen of supplements as well, and like I said

         13  you're constantly monitored.  It's seven days a week

         14  including holidays.  So they're not playing any

         15  games.  This is the real deal.  This has helped me.

         16  I'm day 14, and if you heard me speaking maybe three

         17  weeks ago, I wouldn't be as clear or as excited

         18  about anything.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I wish you a lot

         20  of luck.

         21                 MR. MONA: Thank you.

         22                 MR. MORRISEY: I think what's

         23  important is also once you finish the program, and

         24  they don't tell you when you're done. You basically

         25  figure it out yourself because everyday you're
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          2  coming in and you're just feeling better, and part

          3  of the process is an intake in the morning when you

          4  first come in.  You sit down with a technician who

          5  you know  --  What happened when you left yesterday?

          6  What did you eat?  How much sleep did you get?  You

          7  know, did you take all your vitamins?  Things like

          8  that.

          9                 When you get done with the program,

         10  there is a follow- up by the doctor and by the staff

         11  to make sure that you stay healthy.  They recommend

         12  vitamins to continue.  Dr. Gelb and I had a

         13  conversation about my weight and that I needed to

         14  lose.  I've dropped 20 pounds so far, and I'm hoping

         15  to lose more.  So there is a lot of follow- up.

         16  It's not like okay you're done.  You know and you're

         17  out the door and let's get the next person in here.

         18  They really  --  I think what Pete said earlier

         19  really puts it into perspective.  They get it.  They

         20  really do.  They want us to get better, and the

         21  demeanor of everyone there from the doctor, to Jim,

         22  to the people who are just basically logging you in

         23  everyday is phenomenal.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You didn't feel

         25  rushed through the program in other words?
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          2                 MR. MORRISEY: Oh not at all.  I mean

          3  you could stay there as long as you feel you need

          4  to.  I finished up in  --  I think Pete said he did

          5  35 days.  I did 29, and it was when I was no longer

          6  manifesting all the crap that was in my system that

          7  I felt like okay, I'm done.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And lastly, Dr.

          9  Gelb, what are the supplements?  What are your

         10  clients basically given?

         11                 DR. GELB: I don't have the whole

         12  list.  We give them niacin, vitamin E and D, C and

         13  A.  We give them various salts because of the

         14  sweating too.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay.  Right.

         16  Okay.  Gentlemen, I wish you a lot of luck as you go

         17  forward in health.  Again, I appreciate your time

         18  here.  Dr. Gelb, I wish you well with the project,

         19  and I look forward to working with you in the

         20  future.

         21                 DR. GELB: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         23  much.  I want to thank all that participated today,

         24  and for those who are here.  We have a lot of work

         25  to do.  And like I mentioned earlier, time is not on

                                                            180

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  our side.  We have the lives of many at stake.  So

          3  again, I look forward to working with the

          4  Administration and with my colleagues as we go

          5  forward on this issue, and we will have periodic

          6  hearings like this as a follow- up to see how much

          7  we have progressed.  So thank you very much

          8  everyone, and have a great day. Meeting adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 4:38 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify that

         10  the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of

         11  the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 30th day of March 2007.
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          9            I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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